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INTEGRATED ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANT/ ADDITICNAL INFORMATION EXPLANATION

NON-
COMPLIANT
The Board's Governance Responsibilities

Principle 1: The company should be headed by a competent, working board o foster the long- term success of the corporation, and fo sustain its
competitiveness and profitability in @ manner consistent with its corporate objectives and the long- term best interests of its shareholders and other
stakeholders.
Recommendation 1.1

1. Boardis composed of directors with COMPLIANT The Board is composed of directors who
collective working knowledge, experience have extensive experience and
or experfise that is relevant to the knowledge in the business and in the
company's industry/sector. industry that the Company is in. All directors

are competent and qualified, individually

and collectively, to perform their tasks in

overseeing the management and

3. Directors remain gualified for their positians | COMPLIANT governance of the Company.
individually and collectively to enable
them to fulfill their roles and responsibilities
and respond to the needs of the
organizction.

2. Board has an appropriate mix of COMPLIANT
competence and expertise.

Please see the Company’s Definitive
Information Statement

hitp: fwewier poxvs.com/public /iles/201 60e
linifivelnformationStatemean| pdf (pages 10
to 13), which provides the details of the
accdemic gudalifications, industry
knowledge, professional experience,
expertise, and relevant frainings of

directors.
Recommendation 1.2 _
I. Boardis composed of a majornty of non- COMPLIANT | The Board is currenily camposed of one (1)
executive directors. executive directar, four [4) non-executive
directors, and two (2} independent
directors.

SEC Form - I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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Recommendation 1.3

I Company provides in its Board Charter
and Manual on Corporate Governance a
policy on fraining of directors.

COMPLIANT

The above combination of directors was
designed in line with the Corporate
Governance policies of the Company to
ensure objective decision-moking process
and to protect the Company's inferest.

Plecse see the Company's Annual Report
http://www . paxys.com/public/files/017Ann

valReport.pdi (page 22) for the list of
directors and the type of their directorships.

Said information are also contained in the
following: (i) Company's Disclosure on the
Results of the 2017 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting dated December 7, 2017 at
hitp://www. paxys.com/public/files/46.17C.
pdf (page 4) and {ii) Revised Manudl on
Corporate Governance
hitp://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (page 3).

The training policy of directors are
indicated in the Board Charter and the
Company's Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance at

hitp:/ fwww. paxys.com/public files/Revised

AammendedManuol pdf [page 5)

Copy of the Board Charter is attached
herewith as Annex 1.

2. Company has an orientation program for
first time directors.

COMPLIANT

The members of the Board are already
seasoned and industry experts. Should
there be additional and first-time directors,

SEC Form ~ FACGR © Updated 21Dec2017
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3. Company has relevant annual continuing
fraining for all directors.

Recommendation 1.4
1. Board has ¢ policy on board diversity.

Optional: Recommendation 1.4

1. Company has a policy on and disclases
measurable objectives forimplementing its
board diversity and reports on progress in
achieving its objectives.

Recommendation 1.5
SEC Form — )-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017

CCOMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

the Company’'s corporate governance
policy reguires them to undergo a
comprehensive business immersion and
training/orientation program.

For the annual confinuing training, existing
directors are required to complete a
minimum of 4-hour fraining per year to
ensure that they are continuously informed
of the developments in the business and
regulatory envirenments, including
emerging risks relevant to the industry.

Please refer to link to the Certificates of
Completion of Corporate Governance
Seminar of the Directors and Cfficers of the
Company at
hitp://fwww . paxys.com/public/files/44.17C.
pdf (pages 5-12).

The informafion on the Company’s board
diversify pelicy is contained in the Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance
http://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf (pages 4-5).

All members of the board of directors are
maile.
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1.

Board is assisted by a Corporate Secretary.

COMPLIANT

Corporate Secretary is a separate
individual from the Compliance Officer.

COMPLIANT

Corporate Secretary is not a member of
the Board of Directors.

COMPLIANT

A duly-qualified Corporate Secretary was
appointed by the Board to assist in all its
corporate affairs. The Corporate Secretary
is separate from Compliance Officer and is
not a memiber of Board of Directors and ils
committees,

The information on the Company's
Corporate Secrelary, including his/her
name, gualifications, duties, and function
are provided in the Annual Report
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/017Ann
uvalReport.pdf (page 22 and 23).

Corperate Secretary attends fraining/s on
corporate governance.

COMPLIANT

The information on the corporate
governance fraining attended by the
Corporate Secretary, including number of
hours and tcpics covered, ore found at the
following links:

1. Certificate of Completion of Corporate
Governance Seminar of the Corporate
Secretary
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/44.17C.
pdf [page 13); and

2. Cerfificate of Attendance on the 4th PSE-
SEC Corporaie Governance Forum on 22
November 2017 at

hitp://www. paxys.com/public/files/48.17C.
pdf,

Optional: Recommendation 1.5

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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1. Corporate Secretary distributes materials
for board meetings at least five business
days before scheduled meeting.

Recommendation 1.&

1. Board is assisted by a Compliance Cfficer. | COMPLIANT The Board is also assisted by a Compliance

- _ , Officer with adequate stature and
2. Compliance Officer has a rank of Senier COMPLIANT authority in the Company. He is not a

Vice President or an equivalent position member of the Board nor any of its

with adequate stature and authority in the committees.

corporation.

i S— The information about the Compliance
3. Compliance Otficer is not a member of COMPLIANT Officer, including his/her name, position,

the board. qualifications, duties and functions are
provided in the Company’s Annual Report
at

http:/fwww. paxys.com/public/files/017AnNn
uvalReport.pdf ([page 22 and 24).

4. Compliance Officer attends training/s on COMPLIANT The information on the corparate
corporate governance. governance training attended by the

Compliance Officer, including number of

hours and topics covered,

Is found in the Certificate of Completion of

Corporate Governance Seminar at

hitp://www.paxys.cam/public /files/44.17C.

pdf (page 14).

Principle 2: The fiduciary roles, responsibilities and accountabilities af the Board as provided under the law, the company's articles and by-laws, and
other legal proncuncements and guidelines should be clearly made known 1o all directors as well as fo stockholders and other stakeholders.
Recommendation 2.1

|. Directors act on a fully informed basis, in
good faith, with due diligence and care,
and in the best interest of the company.

The Boara members are fully informed on
any issues or facts requiring Board
attention. The Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Cfficer assists the Baard and

| COMPLIANT

S5EC Form - IFACGR * Updated 21D0ec2017
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Recommendation 2.2
Board oversees the development, review
and approval of the company’s business
objectives and strategy.

COMPLIANT

2. Board oversees and monitors the
implementation of the company’s business
objectives and strategy.

Supplement to Recommendalion 2.2
. Board has a cleariy defined and updated
vision, mission and core values.

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

ensures that all pertinent and necessary
information are provided 1o the directors to
enable them to make informed decisions.

Please see Annex 2 samples Minutes of
Board meeting dated 8 December 2017
which shows how the directors normally
conduct its meeting and how the functions
are discharged.

The Board oversees, reviews, and monitors
the overall business cbiectives and strategy
of the Company. The Management Team
are required fo provide information and
business updates fo the Board quarterly for
their reference, review and/or approval.

Please see Annex 3 for sample minutes of
board meeting dated 5 May 2017 is
attached to this FACGR to show the
quarterly management reporting process,
as well as the Board review and approval
Rrocess.

The Company's vision, mission, and core
values can be found at

http.//www. paxys.com/public/mission visio
n.ntrml

The Board has established and approved
the Company's vision, mission, and core
values. This is reviewed annually to ensure
that fthese are sfill relevant to the
Company's business plans and strategy.

SEC Form ~ I-ACGR * Updated 21De¢2017
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2. Board has astrategy execution process
that facilitates effective management
performance and is atfuned to the
company's business environment, and
culture.

Recommendalion 2.3
1. Boardis headed by a competent and
qualified Chairperson.

Recommendation 2.4

1. Board ensures and adopts an effective
succession planning program for direciors,
key officers and management,

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

As parf of the Company’s strategy
execution process, the Company's plans
and programs for each year are presented
to the Board for review and approval. In
addition, these plans and programs are
presented to and ratified by the
Shareholders during Annual Stockholders
Meeting.

Please see Annex 17 for the draft Minutes
of Annual Stockholders' Meeling dated 6
December 2017 containing the matters
approved by the Board and ralified by the
shareholders.

The information about the Company's
Chairperscn, including his/her name and
qualifications are found at the Company's
Annual Report at
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/017Ann
valReport.pdf (page 22).

The Board is committed to ensure the
conftinuity of effective and competent
leadership within fhe organization. With this,
the Company has cdopted a succession
planning for directors, officers and key
employees.

Flease refer to Annex 1 for a copy of the
Company’'s Board Charter and the
succession planning program.

SEC Form - I-ACGR * Updated 210ec2017
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2. Board adopts a policy on the retirement NON- As for the retirement policy, the

for directors and key officers. COMPLIANT Company has currently no existing
policy on refirement. The Company
has less than 20 employees. 1T will
formulate its own retirement planin
the event that a plan becomes
warranted. It will comply with
theRepublic Act {R.A.) No. 7441 or
the Retfirement Law, when
applicable, should there be any
retirement.

Recommendalion 2.5

i. Board qiigns the remuneration of key COMPLIANT In line with the corporate governance
officers and board members with long- policies of the Company, and as set by the
ferm interests of the company. Compensation and Remuneration

Committee, following are the key
considerations in determining the proper
2. Boorq odgp’rs a policy specifying the COMPLIANT gefrphuengrg:;%nag;:d(lir}eﬁ}fgrrs;:fn;fgtg::%?rs
relationship between remuneration and are commensurate to the responsibilities of
performance. the role (i) no director shall participate in
deciding on his remuneration, and (ii) the
remuneration should consider long-term

3. Directors do not participate in discussions | COMPLIANT inferests of the company.
or deliberations involving his/her own
remuneration. The Company's annual reports and

information statements discloses the fixed
and variable compensations paid directly
or indirectly to directers including the top
four {4) management officers during the
preceding fiscal year.

Optional: Recommendation 2.5

SEC Form - IF-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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Board approves the remuneration of senior
executives.

1

Recommendalion 2.4

Company has measurable standards to
align the performance-based
remuneration of the executive directors
and senior executives with long-term
interest, such as claw back provision and
deterred bonuses.

Board has a formal and transparent board
nomination and election policy.

COMPLIANT

Board nomination and election policy is
disclosed in the company's Manual on
Corporate Governance.

COMPLIANT

Board nomination and election policy
includes how the company accepted
nominations from minority shareholders.

COMPLIANT

The information on the Company's
nomination and election policy, as well as
its process and implementation, including
the criteria used in selecting a new
director, how the candidates are
shortlisted, and how it encourages
nomingations from shareholders are
provided under the Company By-laws at
hitp://www. paxys.com/public/files/3.BL.pd
f {pages Sto 7).

The qualifications and elections of the
Directors are also provided in the Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

Board nomination and election policy
includes how the board shortlists
candidates.

COMPLIANT

AmmendedManual.pdf {pages 4 and 5).

Board nomination and election policy
includes an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Board's processes in

COMPLIANT

The Company also ensures that the
minority shareholders have aright to
nominate candidates to the board.

The Nominotion and Govermnance
Committee is in charge of nominations for
the annual election of officers and

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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the nomination, election or replacement
of a director.

6. Baard has a process for identifying the
quality of directors that is aligned with the
strategic direction of the company.

Optional: Recommendation fo 2.6

I. Company uses professional search firms or
other external sources of candidates {such
as director databases set up by director or
shareholder bodies] when searching for
candidates to the board of directors,

Recommendation 2.7

1. Board has overall responsibility in ensuring
that there is a group-wide policy and
system governing related party
fransactions (RPTs) and other unusual or
infrequently occurring transactions.

COMPLIANT

directors, Board and executive succession
plan and Board Performance Evaluation.

In compliance with the SEC rules, the
Notice af Annual/Special Stockholders’
Meeting includes the profiles of directors
(age. qualification, date of first
appaintment, experience, and
directarships in other listed companies)
nominated for election/re-election. See link
at

hitp://fwww.paxys.com/public/files/201 6De
finitivelnformationStatement. pdf

The summary of procedures for the

selection/appointment and re-election, of
the members of the Baard of Directors are
attached hereto as Annex 18 of this report.

The Company has implemented principles
and procedures that would ensure the
integrity and fransparency of related party
fransactions between and among the
Corporafion and its parent company, joint
venture, subsidiaries, associates, affiliates,

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 210ec2017
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the group. taking into account their size,
structure, risk profile and complexity of
operations,

Supplement to Recommendaltions 2,7

1. Board clecrly defines the threshold for
disclosure and approval of RPTs and
categorizes such transactions according
to those that are considered de minimis or
fransactions that need not be reported or
announced, those that need tc be
disclosed, and those that need prior
shareholder approval. The aggregate
amount of RPTs within any twelve (12)
month period should be considered for
purposes of applying the thresholds for
disclosure and approval.

2. RPT policy includes appropriate review COMPLIANT
and approval of material RPTs, which
guarantee fairness and transparency of
the fransactions.

3. RPT policy encompasses all entifies within COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

major stockholders, officers and directaors,
including their spouses, children and
dependent siblings and parents, and of
interlocking director relationships by
members of the Board.

The Company does not engage in related
party fransactions without pricr Board
approval.

We apply the arms-length principle and
these transactions are properly recorded
and disclosed in the annual report and
audited financial statements.

The Company's policy on related party
fransaction, including policy on review and
approval of signiticant RPTs can be found
at http//www.paxys.com/public/compan
y_policies.himl

Please refer to our responses in
Reccmmendation 2.7 above.

The Company's policy on related party
fransaction, including policy on review and
approval of significant RPTs can be found
at

hitp fenww. pdxys.com/public /fcompany p

SEC Form — 1-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017

Page 12 of 69



2. Board establishes a voting system whereby | COMPLIANT Please refer to Annex 4 for a copy of policy
a majority of non-related party on related party transactions, including
shareholders approve specific types of provisions for materiality threshold and
related party transactions during voting systemn.
shareholders' meetings.

Recommendation 2.8

1. Boardis primarily respensible for approving | COMPLIANT The information on the Board's policy and
the selection of Management led by the responsibility for approving the selection of
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and the management is provided in the Revised
heads of the other control functions (Chief Manual of Corporate Governance at
Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Officer and hﬁp://www.poxvs.comjpuinc/fiIes/Reyised
Chief Audit Executive). AmmendeMOnuol.Ddf under the Duties

and Functions of the Board {pages 8 to 10)
and the Internal Control Responsibilities of
the Board {pages 11 to 12).
The Nominaticns and Corporate
Govemnance Committee is in charge of the
selection process and is tasked to prepare
recommendations for approval of the
Board.

2. Boardis primarily responsible for assessing COMPLIANT The information on Board's policy and

the performance of Management led by
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the
heads of the other control functions (Chief
Risk Officer, Chief Compliance Cfficer and
Chief Audit Executive).

responsibility for assessing the perfermance
of management is provided in Revised
Manual of Corporate Governonce at
hitp://fwww.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedMonual.pdf under the Duties
and Functions of the Board (pages 8 to 10).

The Board usually conducts a periodic
assessment over the CEQ/President and
the heads of the other confrol functions

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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Recommendation 2.9

Board establishes an effective
perfcrmance management framewaork
that ensures that Management’s
performance is at par with the standards

set by the Board and Senior Management.

COMPLIANT

Recommendation 2.10

Board establishes an effective

performance management framework
that ensures that perscnnel's performance
is at par with the standards set by the
Board and Senicr Management,

COMPLIANT

mechanism far manitoring and managing
potential conflict af interest of the

Management, members and shareholders.

1. Board oversees that an appropriate COMPLIANT
internal contral system is in place.
2. Theinternal contral system includes a COMPLIANT

based on the Board's established
responsibilities.

The Company has an established
perfermance management program and
framework, The Board and its committee
performs an annual self-assessment to
ensure that the chjectives as specified in
the Board and Committee Charters are
being achieved.

Flease refer to Annexes 5 and 6 for sample
assessment forms of the Board.

The infermation on the Board's
responsibility for overseeing that an
appropriate internal control system is in
place are provided in the Campany's
Revised Manual on Corparate

Governance af
http://www . paxys.caom/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf {pages 11-12).

The basic control enviranment cansists of &
working Board which ensures that the
Campany is properly managed and
governance is in place, @ management
that actively manages and aperations the
company is a prudent manner, working
organizatianal risk management and

SEC Form — IFACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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control mechanisms, and independent
audit function 1o ensure and monitor the
efficacy and effectiveness of governance,
risk management and internal controls.

3. Board approves the Internal Audit Charter.

COMPLIANT

The Intfermal Audit Charter which defines
the authority, responsibility and purpose of
Internal Audit function in the Company has
been reviewed and approved by the
Board through its Audit, Risk and Related
Party Transactions Committee.

Please refer fo Annex 7 for the copy of
Internal Audit Charter.

Recommendation 2.11

1. Board oversees that the company has in
place a sound enterprise risk management
(ERM) framework to effectively identify,
monitor, assess and manage key business
risks.

COMPLIANT

2. The risk management framework guides
the board in identifying units/business lines
and enterprise-level risk exposures, as well
as the effectiveness of risk management
strategies.

COMPLIANT

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the
Board in ensuring that the risk
management program is in place. The
Committee ensures that an enferprise-wide
risk management framework has been
adopted and implemented. Identified
critical or high risks areas are presented o
the Board for information and resolution.

In general, the risk management program
of the Company includes the following
pProcess:

1. Risk identification —risks are
identified from enterprise level
down to the business unit and
department level. This may include
financial risks, operational risks
environmental risks, polifical risks,
regulatory risks, etc,

SEC Form - I-ACGR * Updated 2 1Dec2017
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2. Risk evaluation - the identified risks ]
are assessed for likelihood or
frequency and potential impact to
the usiness is measured and
quantified, as much as practicable.
Risks are ranked depending on ifs
severity and likelihood of
occurrence.

3. Risk freatment - after identifying
and evalualing risk exposures, the
Company identifies the risk
freatment options and depending
on the risk appetite of the
Management, risk responses could
include avoidance, accepfance,
reduction, sharng or fransferring of
risk.

Please refer o Audit and Risk Committee
Charter Sections B {Risk Management
System) at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/audit ri
sk.docx (page 3).

Please also see link 1o the Company's Risk
Management Policy at

hitp://www. paxys.com/public/comoany p
olicies.ntml

Please refer to Annex 8 for the Enterprise
Risk Management Program and framewaork
of the Company

Recommendation 2,12

SEC Form - [-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017

Page 16 of 69



1. Board has a Board Charter that farmalizes | COMPLIANT Please refer to Annex 1 far the Company's
and clearly states its roles, responsibilities Board Charter which delineates the overall
and accountabilities in carrying out its roles, responsibilities af the Board.
fiduciary role.

2. Board Charter serves as a guide to the COMPUANT
directors in the perfcrmance of their
functions.

3. Board Charter is publicly available and COMPLIANT

posted cn the company's website.

Additional Recommendalion to Principle 2
1. Beard has a clear insider frading policy. COMPLIANT The Board has a clear and defined insider
tfrading palicy. The highlights of the policy
is posted in the Company's welbsite:

g fweww, paxys.comy/public/company. B

Optional: Principle 2

1. Company has a pclicy en granting loans
to directors, either forbidding the practice
or ensuring that the transaction is
conducted at arm’s length basis and at
market rates.

2. Company discloses the types of decision
requiring board cf directors’ approval.

Principle 3: Bocard commitfees should be set up to the extent possible 1o suppert the effective performance of the Board's tunctions, particularly with
respect 1o audit, risk management, related party transactions, and ather key corparate gavernance concerhs, such as namination and

S5EC Form — IFACGR * Updated 210ec?017
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remuneration. The composition, functions and responsibilities of all committees established should be contained in a publicly available Committes

Charter.

Recommendation 3.1

1. Board establishes board committees that
focus on specific board functions to aid in
the optimal performance of its roles and
responsibilities.

Recommendation 3.2

1. Board establishes an Audit Committes fo
enhance its oversight capability cver the
company’s financial reporting, internal
control system, internal and external audit
processes, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulaticons.

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

The following commitiees has been
established to support the effective
performance of the Board's functions:
1. Executive Committee {Annex 9|
2. Audit, Risk Management and
Related-Party Transactions
Committee (Annex 10)
3. Compensation and Remuneration
Committee (Annex 11)
4. Nominatfions and Corporate
Governonce Committee (Annex 12)

Please refer to the information at
hitp:/www paxys.com/public/board com

mittees.himl| and agttached Annexes for the

copy of the committee charters.

| The Board haoss a separate and

independent committee for Audit, Risk
Management, and Relate Party
Transactions.

The Committee functions, authority,
compaosition, and responsibilities are set
forth in the Company's Revised Manual on
Corporate Governance and the Audit
Committee Charter.

hite:/fwwew. paxys com/public/board com
roittees Atml

SEC Form — -ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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AmmendedManualpdt {page 17 to 18}

Audit Committee is composed of at least
three appropriately qualified non-
execulive directors, the majority of whom,
including the Chairman is independent.

COMPLIANT

The Company's Audit and Risk
Management Commitiee is currently
composed of four (4) non-executive
members which includes two (2)
independent directors,

The committee members are disclosed in
the Cempany’s website:

hitps/faww paxys.com/public/board com
mitiess.html

The qualifications of the committes
members as well as their background,
business knowledge and relevant
experiences are disclosed in the
Company’s Annual Report.

hite: fweww paxys.com/public/lles/017Ann
valReport.pdl - pages 22 to 23

All the members of the committee have
relevant background, knowledge, skills,
and/or experience in the areas of
accounting, auditing and finance.

COMPLIANT

Please refer to our response to
Recommendation 3.2.2 above for the link
to the background, qualifications, and
relevant experiences for the committee
members.

The Chairman af the Audit Committee is
not the Chairman of the Board or of any
other committee,

COMPLUANT

The Audit and Risk Management
Committee Chairman is not the Chairman
of the Board and/or of any ather
committee.

The Chairman of the Board, members of
the Board, board committees and

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017
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services conducted by the external
auditor.

APPLICABLE

committee members are disclosed in the
company's website:

http:/ fweeew paxys comfpublic/board  com

by the Company's external auditor, Reyes
Tacandeng and Co. (RTC), for the year
2017.

Nevertheless, the Company's Audit and
Risk Management Commitiee is
responsible for the assessment, review and
approval of non-audit services or
engagement assigned to external auditors
10 ensure that the audit independence is
maintained. In addition, non-audit work
performed shall be appropriately disclosed
in the Company's Annual Report in
accordance with the Company's Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance.

hitps/fwww paxys.com/public/liles/Revised
Ammendedianual.pdl - page 14, 1710 18

Supplement to Recommendation 3.2
1. Audit Commiitee approves dll non-audit NOT There are no non-audif services conducted

2. Audit Committee conducts regular
meetings and dialoegues with the external
audit team without anyone from
management present.

COMPLIANT

The Company’s Audit and Risk
Management Committee Charter reguire
the members of the committee to
convene at least three (3) times per year,
The committee, at its discretion, may invite
the external auditors, members of the
monagement, and other concerned
parfies to aftend and provide them with
pertinent information, as necessary.
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1. Audit Committee meet at least faur times
during the year.

For the year 2017, the committee
convened two (2) meetings with the
company's external auditor for the
discussion of 2016 audit results and 2017
audit plan. Selected members of the
management were invited in the meeting
as resource persons for any questians that
the committee may sk in relatian ta the
reports discussed by the auditars.

The Carporate Secretary maintains @
record af all, including canfidential,
minutes of the Cammittee meetings.

Optional: Recommendation 3.2

2. Audit Committee appraves the
appeintment and removal of the internal
auditor.

Recommendation 3.3

1. Boord establishes a Carparate
Gavernance Cammittee tasked to assist
the Board in the perfarmance of its
corporate governance respansibilities,
including the functions that were tarmerly
assigned to a Namination and
Remuneration Committee.

COMPLIANT

The infarmatian about the members of the
Nomination and Corporate Gavernance
Cammittee are cantained ot

hitp://www paxys.com/public/baard cam
mittees.himl

The functions af the Cammittee are
provided in the Company's Revised
Manual of Carparate Governance
hitp://'www paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManudl.pdf (page 15).
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The Nomination and Corporate
Govermnance Committee Charler can be
found at
hitp://www . paxys.com/public/files/audit ri
sk.docx. This is also attached as Annex 12
hereof,

The Committee undertook the process of
identifying the quality of directors in line
with the Company’s strategic direction,

2. Corporate Governance Committee is COMPLIANT Please see link to the details of the
composed of at least three members, all members of the Nomination and
of whom should be independent directors. Corporate Governance Commiltee at
http://www paxys.com/public/board com
mittees.himl

3. Chairman of the Corporate Governance COMPLIANT The Chairman of the Company’s

Cemmittee is an independent director. Nemination and Corporate Governance
Committee is Mr. George Sycip who is an
independent director.

Oplional: Recommendation 3.3.

1. Corporate Governance Committee meet
at least twice during the year.

Recommendation 3.4

|. Board establishes a separate Board Risk COMPLIAMT Tne functions of the Board Risk Oversight
Oversight Commifttee {BROC) that should Committee (BROC] is curently undertaken
be responsible for the oversight of a by the Company's Audit, Risk
company's Enterprise Risk Management Management, and Related Party
system fo ensure its functionality and Tronsactions Commitiee.

effectiveness. . .
A copy of the Committee Charter is

available at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/audit ri
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sk.docx. This is also attached as Annex 10
hereof

2. BROC is composed of at least three

members, the majonty of whom should be
independent directors, including the
Chairman.

COMPLIANT

The Audit, Risk Management, and Related
Party Transacticns Commitiee is composed
of four (4) members, including
independent directors. The information on
the members of the Committee, including
their type of directorships, can be found at
hiltp://www.paxys.com/public/board con

rnitteas. html

The principal responsigility of the
committee is to assist the beard in fulfiling
its corpeorate governance and fiduciary
oversight responsibilities in relation tc the
risk management, internal control systems,
accounting policies and practices, internal
and external audit functions and financial
reporting of the Cempany and its
subsidiaries.

The Chairman of the BROC is not the
Chairman of the Board or of any other
committee.

COMPLIANT

The Chairman of the Audit, Risk, and
Related Party Transactions Committee is
not the chairman of the Board nor any of
its other committees.

The detailed list of board committeas and
its members are available at

http://fwww. paxys.com/public/baard com
miftees.html.

At least one member of the BROC has
relevant thorough knowledge and
experience on risk and risk management.

COMPLIANT

All members of the Committee are
directors and/or experienced officers not
just for the Company but of several other
compganies. They have extensive
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. Board establishes a Related Party
Transactions (RPT) Committee, which is
lasked with reviewing all material related
party transactions of the company.

COMPLIANT

business/industry knowledge and
experience to enable them o perform
their roles on risk management and the
overall overseeing of overall corporate
governance practices of the Company.
Plecase see link of their respective
background at
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/bod mngm
t.htmil

This function is currently undertaken by the
Company's Audit, Risk, and Related Party
Transactions Commiffee.

The Board through its Committee reviews
and approves all material related party
fransaction of the Company.

This is expressly indicated in the Audif, Risk
Management, and Related Party
Transactions Commiftee Charter at

httos/ fwww. ponevs.comi/publicffiles/audil

Please refer to Annex 10 for the copy of the
Committee Charter.

Recommendalion 3.5
|

2. RPT Committee is composed of af least
three non-executive directors, two of
whom should be independent, including
the Chairman.

COMPLIANT

The Committee is composed of four (4}
non-executive members. Two (2) of whom
are independent directors, including the
Committee Chairman.

Please refer to the company website at
http://www . paxys.com/public/board com
mittees.himl for information on the
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All established committees have a
Committee Charter stating in plain terms
their respective purposes, memberships,
structures, operations, reporting process,
resources and other relevant information.

COMPLIANT

Committee Charters provide standards for
evaluating the performance of the
Committees.

COMPLIANT

Committee Charters were fully disclosed
on the company’s website.

Recommendation 4.1

COMPLIANT

members of the Audit, Risk, and Related
Party Transactions Commiftee, including
their type of directorship.

All Board commitiees have established
Charters which delineates the committee’s
overall purpose, authority, responsibility,
composition, meetings and reporting
process. The responsibilifies indicated in
the charter serves as the basis in the
evaluation of each committee's
performance,

Please refer fo the links below for a copy of
the Committee Charters: (i) Nomination
and Corporate Governance Committee
Charter at
htte://www.paxys.com/public/files/audit ri
sk.docx and

{ii) Audit, Risk, and Related Party
Transactions Committee Charter at

hitp:/ fwww paxyvs.com/public/files/oudil 1
sk docx

(i) Audit, Risk, and Related Party
Transactions Committee Charter at
http:/fwww. paxys.com/public/files/audit ri
sk.docx

R r i e S T e D R

Recommendation 3.4
I.

Principle 4: To show full commitment to the campany, the directors should devote the fime and aftention necessary to properly ana effectively
perform their duties and resoonsibilities, including sufficient time to be familiar with the corporation's business.
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The Directors attend and actively
participate in all meetings of the Board,
Committees and shareholders in person or
through tele-/videoconferencing
conducted in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Commission.

COMPLIANT

The Board of Directors met six () times
during the covered period on the following
dates; March 20, 2017 [Regular); May 3,
2017 (Regular); August 10, 2017 {Regular};
November é, 2017 (Regular); December 6,
2017 (Organizational]; and December 8,
2017 (Regular)}.

Please find attached link on attendance of
the Members of the Board during the said
meetings as certified by the Corporate
Secretary at
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/iiles/DA17.D
df

The directors review meeting materials for
all Board and Committee meetings.

COMPLIANT

The Corporate Secretary ensures that the
necessary information, reports, including
meeting agenda are provided to the
members of the board to facilitate efficient
review of all business matters to be
discussed in the board or committee
meetings.

The directors ask the necessary questions
or seek clarifications and explanations
during the Board and Committee
meetings.

COMPLIANT

The directors have the liberty to ask
questions or clarifications during board and
committee meetings. The Corporate
Secretary likewise encourages the directors
to ask questions before an agenda item is
approved and closed.

All matters taken up in the meetings are
franscribed in the board or committee
minutes of the meeting.

Please refer to Annexes 2 and 3 for the
sample minutes of the Board meeting.
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Recommendadtion 4.2
1. Non-executive directors concurrently serve | COMPLIANI None of the non-executive directors of the

in a maximum of five publicly-listed company serves or seats in the board of
companies to ensure that they have more ’rho_n five (5) publicly-listed
sufficient fime to fully prepare for minutes, companies.

challenge Management's
proposals/views, and cversee the long-
term strategy of the company.

The Company's policy setting the limit of
board seats that a non-executive director
can hold simultanecusly can be found at
the Company's

Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance

http:/ fwww. paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf (page 3)

In addition, the Company’s Definitive
Informatiion Statement contains information
on the directorships of the Company's
directors in both listed and non-listed
companies at

hitp://www paxys.com/public/files/201 6De
finitiveInformationStatement.pdf {pages 10

to12).

Recommendalion 4.3

1. The direciors notity the company's board COMPLIANT The policy that requires the written
before accepting a directership in ancther notification to the board can be found at
company. the Company’s Revised Manual on

Corporate Governance at
hittp://www. paxys.com/public/man corp
gov.htmi

For the year covered, no directors have
accepted new directorships from ancther
companies, thus, there were no
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Optional: Principle 4

Company does not have any executive
directors who serve in more than two
boards of listed companies outside of the
group.

nofifications received by the Board nor
taken up in the meetings.

2. Company schedules board of directors’
meetings before the start of the financial
year.

3

4. Board of directors meet at least six times
during the year.

5. Company reguires as minimum quarum of

at least 2/3 for baard decisions.

Principle 5: The board should endeavor ta exercise an abjective and independent judgment on all carporate affairs

Recommendation 5,1

1.

The Board has at least 3 iIndependent
directors or such number as to constitute
one-third of the board, whichever is higher,

Recommendation 5.2
1.

The independent directors possess all the
gualifications and none of the
disqualifications te hold the positions.

NON-
COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

The information on the qualifications of the
independent directors are provided in fhe
Company's Annual Report af
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/017Ann

valReport.pdi (page 23)

The Company has 2 Independent
Directors out of 7. The management
believes that this is adequate for the
time being.
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supplement to Recommendation 5.2
| 1. Company has no sharenolder agreements, | COMPLIANT The Revised Manual of Corporate

by-laws provisions, or other arrangements governance provides that “The Board
that constroin the directors’ ability to vote membership may be a combination of
independently. Executive Directors and Non-Executive

Directors (which include Independent
Directors) in order that no single director or
small group of directors can dominate the
decision-making process.

The Non-Executive Directors shall comprise
at least a majority of the entire Board
membership. The Non-Executive Directors
should possess such gualifications and
stature that would enable them to
effectively participate in the deliberations
of the Board.”
hitp://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf (page 3)

Recommendation 5.3
I. The independent directors serve tor a COMPLIANT Allindependent directors are in

cumulative term of nine years (reckoned compliance to this reguirerment.

from 2012}. Both directors have served the Company
for five [5) year cumulative term reckoned
from year 2012.

The Nominations and Governance
Committee reviews the qualifications and
disqualifications of all directors, including
the term limits for independent directors.
Such information will be disclosed in the
Company’s Detinitive Information Report.
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2. The company bars an independent
director from serving in such capacity after
the term limit of nine years.

COMPLIANT

The Company's policy on term limits for its
independent director is provided in the
Company's

Revised Manual on Corporate
Governcnce
hitp://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedMonugal.pdf (page 3)

3. Inthe instance that the company retgins
an independent director in the same
capacity after nine years, the board
provides meriterious justification and seeks
shareholders' approval during the annual
sharehalders’ meeting.

_Recommendatlion 5.4

1. The positions of Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate individuals.

COMPLIANT

NON-
COMPLIANT

The requirement of meritorious justification
and proof of shareholders’ approval during
the annual sharehalders' meeting is
provided in the Revised Manual of
Corporate Governance

http:/fwww paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (page 3)

This situation has not yet occurred in the
Company during the covered pericd. Thus,
there is no applicable preof that can be
submitted herein.

The Campany is a holding company
and the nature of its business and
operation is very simple. As such, the
Company at this time daes not find
the need ta have separate positions
for the Chairman af the Baard and
the Chief Executive Officer.

2. The Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer have clearly defined
responsibilifies.

COMPLIANT

The rales and responsibilities of the
Chairman of the Beard and Chief
Executive Officer are pravided in the
Revised Manual of Carporate Governance
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (pages 3 ta 4)
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The Summary of roles and responsibilities of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are indicated in Annex 18 of this report.

Recommendation 5.5

(. If the Chairman of the Board 1s not an COMPLIANT The Revised Manual of Corporate
independent director, the board Governance
designates a lead director among the http://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised
independent directors. AmmendedmManual.pdf [page 4} provides:

“Moreover, the Board shall designate a
lead director among the Independent
Directors if the positions of the Chairman of
the Board and the CEO are held by one
person.

The lead Independent Director shall
preside over the meetings of the Non-
Executive Directors, who shail have
separate periodic meefings with the
external auditor and heads of the internal
audit, compliance and risk functions,
without any of Executive Directors present.
The purpose of these meefings is to ensure
that proper checks and balances are in
place within the Corporation.”

The Chairman of the Board is not and
independent director. The Company's
lead Independent Director is Mr. Jose
Antonio Lichauco.

Recommendation 5.6

1. Directors with matfernal interest in @ COMPLANT The Revised Manual of Corporate
fransaction affecting the corporation Govemance

hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised
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abstain from taking part in the
deliberations on the fransaction.

. The non-executive directors (NEDs) hove
separate periodic meetings with the
external auditar and heads of the internal

AmmendedManual.odf (page 4) includes
the following as duty of the directors:
"Canduct fair business transactions with
the Corporation, ond ensure that his
personatinterest daes not canflict with the
interests of the Corporation. The basic
principle to be cbserved is that a directar
should not use his position to profit ar gain
some benefit or advantage for himself
and/or his related interests. A director
should avoid situations that may
compromise his impartiality. If an actual or
potential conflict af interest may arise on
the part of a director, he should fully and
immediately disclose it and should not

parficipate in the decision-making process.

A director who has a continuing material
conflict of interest shauld seriqusly consider
resigning from his position. A conflict of
interest shall be considered material if the
director's personal or business interest is
antaganistic to that of the Corporation, cor
stands to acquire or gain financial
advantage at the expense of the
Corporation.”

This situation has not yet occurred in the
Company. Thus, there is no available proof
of abstention ta be provided herein.

The non-executive directars {NEDs), by
constituting the Audit, Risk, and Related
Party Transaction Commitiee, usually

Recommendation 5.7
1 ) COMPLIANT
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audit, compliance and risk functions, conduct separate periodic meetings with
without any executive present. the external auditor and heads of the
internal cudit, compliance and risk
functions. Said meetings are chaired by Mr.
2. The meeﬂngs are chaired by the lead COMPLIANT Jlose Antonio Lichauco, the lead

independent director. independent director. During these
meetings, the committee may invite
memiers of the executive for inquiries that
can be confimed by the latter.

Opfional: Principle 5
. None of the direciars s a former CECQ of
the company in the past 2 years.

Principle 4: The best measure of the Board's effectiveness is through an assessment process. The Board should reguiarly camy out evaluations 1o
appraize its performance as a body, and assess whether it possesses the right mix of hackarounds and competencies,
Recommendation 6.1 ' :
1. Board conducts an annual self-assessment | COMPLIANT The Company's Revised Manual of
of its performance as a whole. Corporate Governance requires the
member of the Board to annually assess
2. The Chairman conducts a self-assessment | COMPLIANT the Board's, the CEQ's, and their own
of his performance. individual performance through a Board
Assessment Review initiated by the
Nomincation and Corporate Governance
3. The individual members conduct a self- COMPLIANT Committee. Results of the Board, Self and
assessment of their performance. CEC Assess_mer_ﬁs are presented to the
Board Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and circulated to
4, Each committee conducts a self- COMPLIANT the Board for their feedback and
assessment of its performance. confirmation.

Flease refer to Annex 5, 6, 13, 14, and 15 for
sample assessment forms used by the
Board, its members and committees.
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5. Every three years, the assessments are COMPLIANT Article 7 of the Revised Manual of
supported by an external facilitator. Corporate Governance
http://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManuol.pdf (page 13)
provides;
" Every three (3) years, the assessment
shall be supported by an external
facilitator.”

The Company hes yet to identify and
appoint an external facilitator.

Recommendation 6.2 _
I. Board hasin place a system that provides, | COMPLIANT Article 7 of the Revised Manual ot

at the minimum, criteria and process to Corporate Governance
determine the perdormance of the Board, hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised
individuol directors and committees. AmmendedManual.pdf (page 13)

provides: "The Board shall have in place a
systemn that provides, at the minimum,
criteria and process to determine the
performance of the Board, the individual
2. The system allows for a feedback COMPLIANT directors, committees and such system

mechanism from the shareholders. shall aliow for a feedback mechanism from

the shareholders.”

Frinciple 7: members of the Board are dutv-bound o apply high elhical standards, taking into account the inferests of all stakeholders.

Recommendation 7.1

Board adopts a Code of Business Conduct | COMPLIANT Please see the Company's Code of

and Ethics, which provide standards for Business Conduct and Ethics is at
professional and ethical behavior, as well http:/fwww paxys.com/public/files/Condu
as articulate acceptable and ciEthics.pdf

unacceptable conduct and practices in
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internal and external dealings of the
company.

2. The Code is properly disseminated to the

Board, senior management and
employees.

COMPLIANT

The Board, senior management and
employees are aware of the Code of
Business Ethics. The Code of Ethics was
properly circulated 1o the directors, senior
management and employees. The Code
of Ethics is also available for viewing in the
Company’s website [www.paxys.com).

The Code is disclosed and mode available
to the public through the company
website.

and procedures on curbing and pendalizing
company involvement in offering. paying
and receiving bribes.

COMPLIANT

implementation and monitoring of

1. Board ensures the proper and efficient COMPLANT
implementation and monitering of
compliance with the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics.

2. Board ensures the proper and efficient COMPLIANT

Please see the Company's Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is at
htto://www . paxys.com/public/files/Condu
ctEthics.pdf

tolerated in the Company. The Company
has established serious sanctions for
employees proven guilty of bribery. Pleose
refer to page 7 of the Company's Code of
Business Cenduct and Ethics ot
htto://www . paxys.com/public/files/Condu
CtEfhics. pdf.

The Directors, Senior Management, and all
employees are expected o adhere to the
Code of Ethics by:

- Engaging in honest conduct. All
employees of the company are
expected to comply with applicable
laws, rules and regulations,

Demands brought about by business

Supplement to Recommendation 7.1
1. Company has clear and stringent policies COMPLIANT Bribery and corruption in all forms are not

Recommendation 7.2 |
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compliance with company internal exigencies or pressures are not excuses

policies. for violating the stipulations in the Code
of Ethics.

- Persconally adhering to the standards
and restrictions imposed by those laws,
rules and regulations.

The Code of Business Conduct is being
cascaded during new-hire crientation. The
implementation and monitoring is
delegated to the line leaders. Internal Audit
is part of the monitoring process through its
periodic audits.

Disclosure and Transparency

Principle 8: The company should establish corporate disclosure policies and procedures that are practical and in accordance with best practices
and requlatory expectations.

Recommendation 8.1

I. Board estalblishes corporate disclosure COMPLIANT Flease see the Company's policy on
policies and procedures to ensure @ Disclosure and Transparency in the
comprehensive, accurate, reliable and Company’s Revised Manual on Corporate
timely report to shareholders and other Governance at
stakeholders that gives a fair and hitp:.//www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (page 20)

complete picture of a company’s financial

condition, results and business operations. . .
peratio The Company uses its carparate website,

email, mails, SEC/PSE disclosures, in order to
disseminate information to its stockholders.

Supplement to Recommendations 8.1
I

. Company distributes or makes availgble NON-
annual and guarterly consolidated reports, | COMPLIANT The Company distributes and makes
cash flow statements, and special qudit avdilable its annual and guarterly
revisions. Consolidated financial consolidated reports, cash flow
statements are published within ninety (90) statements, and special audit
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days from the end of the fiscal year, while
interim reports are published within forty-
five (45) days from the end of the reporting
period.

revisions. Its interim reports are
published within forty-five {45) days
from the end of the reporting
periocd. However, its consolidated
financial statements are published
on or before April 15, 2017 [not 90
days), which is the standard period
for the filing thereof.

Please refer to Annex 18 of this
report for the summary list of filed
reports and the actual date of filing,
and due dates.

Company discloses in its annual report the
principal risks associated with the identity
of the company's controlling shareholders;
the degree of ownership concenfration;
cross-holdings among company affiliates;
and any imbalances between the
controlling shareholders' voting power and
overall equity position in the company.

COMPLIANT

Please see link to the Company's Annual
Report at
http://www.paxys.com/public ffiles/017Ann

ualReport.pdf
disclosing the following:

1.

principal risks to minority
shareholders associated with the
identity of the company's
controlling shareholders: Principal
shareholder is cognizant of the rights
of the minority sharehclders and has
not exercised its powaer or exercise
any action that is detrimental to the
minority shareholders. Please see
page ? [Holders), page 25 (Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and management), page
26 [Certain Ownership and Related
Transactions});
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Recommendation 8.2

I Company has a policy requiring all COMPLIANT
directors to disclose/report to the
company any dealings in the company’s
shares within three business days.

2. Company has a policy requiring all officers | COMPLIANT

To disclose/report o the company any
dealings in the company’s shares within
three business days.

2. cross-holdings among company
afiiiates: please see page 5
{Related Party Transactions), page 7
{Properties), page 7 (Holders) page
26 [Certain Ownership and Related
Transactions), pages 10 1o
12{Financial Information]), Exhibit C
{Consolidated Financial Statements
of Paxys Group], page 26 (Certain
Ownership and Related
Transactions); and

3. any imbalances befween the
confrolling shareholders’ voting
power and overall equity position in
the company: please see page 7
[Submissian of Matters to a Vote of
Security Holders).

Please see the Company's policy requiring
directors and officers to disclose their
dealings in the Company's shares af the
Company's Revised Manual of Corporate
Governance at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf {page 20).

The Company also discleses any dealings
by officers and directors in its Annual
Report at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/017 Ann
ualReport.pdf page 26 (Certain Ownership
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Supplement to Recommendation B.2

Company discloses the trading of the
corporation's shares by directors, officers
(or persons performing similar functions)
and contreling shareholders. This includes
the disclosure of the company's purchase
of its shares from the market (e.g. share
buy-back program).

COMPLIANT

Recommendation 8.3

and Related Transactions). There has been
no such dealing within the covered period,

Please see link/reference to the
shareholdings of directors, management
and top 100 shareholders at

hito://www. paxys.com/public/files/24.5toc

kHolders.odf

Flease see link or reference to the
company’'s Conglemerate Map at
http://www. paxys.cem/public/corp struct
ure.himl

material information on key executives to
evaluate their experience and
qualifications, and assess any potential
conflicts of interest that might affect their
judgment.

1. Board fully discloses all relevant and COMPLIANT Please see details of the directors’
rmaterial information on individual board academic qualifications, snare ownership
members fo evaluate their experience in the company, membership in other
and qudlifications, and assess any boards, ather executive positions,
potential confiicts of interest that might professional experiences, expertise and
affect their judgment, relevant ’rromlng.s‘qﬁended at _’rhe
Company's Definitive Information
Statement ot
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/20146De
finitivelnformationStatement.pdf (pages 10
1o 13},
2. Board fully discloses all relevant and COMPLIANT Please see deldils of key officers’

academic gualifications, share ownership
in the Company, memibership in other
boards, other executive positions,
professional experiences, expertise and
relevant trainings attended at the
Company's Definitive Information
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Recommendation 8.4

Statement at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/20146De
finitivelnformationStatement.odf {pages 10
to 12).

1. Company provides a clear disclosure of its | COMPLIANI Flease see the Company policy and
policies and procedure for setting Board practice for setting board remuneration at
remuneration, including the level and mix the Company’s Revised Manual of
of the same. Corporate Governance at

hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.odf ([page 13)

2. Company provides a clear disclosure of its | COMPLIANT Please see the Company policy and
policies and procedure for setting practice for setting board remuneration at
executive remuneration, including the the Company's Revised Manual of
level and mix of the same. Corporate Governance af

hito://www . paxys.cam/public/tiles/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdt (page 13}

3. Company discloses the remuneration on NCN- In compliance with the Data Privacy
an individual basis, including termination COMPLIANT Law the details of every employee,
and retirement provisions. including directors and executive

officers, are regarded as
confidential. As such, for purposes of
confidentiality and protection of
every ofticer of the Company, the
Company discloses the aggregate
amount ot remuneration of all of its
execufive officers.

Recommenddtion 8.5

1. Company discloses ifs policies governing COMPLIANT Please see the Company’s RPT policy at

Related Party Transactions {RPTs) and other

unusual or infrequently occurring

hitp:/fwww. paxys.com/public/company p

olicies.himl
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fransactions in their Manual on Corporate
Governance.

The Company’s Revised Manual on
Corporate Governance also requires that

if the director with conflict of interest
abstained from the board discussion on
that particular transaction. See link at
http:/fwww.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManudl.ndf (page 10).

Company discloses material or significant
RPTs reviewed and approved during the
year.

COMPLIANT

As provided in the Company Annual
Report
http:/fwww.paxys.com/public/files/017Ann

valReport.pdf

Related Party Transactions {page 5)

Transactions between related parties for
the year 2017 mainly include cash
advances for working capital advances
and are accounted for at arms-length
prices. Paxys, Inc. granted cash advances
in support of working capital requirements
of ACS Pacific Limited and $SPI amounting
to R10.1 million and R3.6 milfion,
respectively.

Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions [page 24)

Except from those mentioned in the above
item, there has been no transaction during
the fast two years, nor is any fransaction
presently proposed, to which the
Company was or is to be a party in which
any director or executive officer of the
Company, or nominee for election as a
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director, or owner of more than 10% of the
Company's voting securifies, or voting frust
holder of 10% or more of any class of the
Company's securifies, or any member of
the immediate family of any of the
foregoing persons had oris to have a
direct or indirect material interest. In the
ordinary and regular course of business, the
Company had or may have fransactions
with other companies in which some of the
foregoing persons may have an interest.

Supplement to Recommendation 8.5

. Company requires directors o disclose COMPLIANT Under the Revised Manual of Corporate
their interests in fransactions or any other Governdance at
conflict of interests. http://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.odf (page 20), the
Board shall commit at all times to full
disclosure of material information of all their
dealings. It shall cause the filing of all
required information through the
oppropridte Exchange mechanisms for
listed companies and submission to the SEC
for the inferest of the stockholders and
stakeholders.

The disclosure/report to the Corporation of
any dealings of the Corporation's shares
should be made within three {3} business

days.
Optional : Recommendation 8.5

1. Company discloses that RFTs are
conducted in such a way to ensure that
they are fair and at arms’ length.
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| Recommendation 8.4

evaluate the fairness of the transaction
price an the acquisition or disposal of
assets.

Company discloses the existence,
justification and details on shareholder
agreements, voling trust agreements,
confidentiality agreements, and such
other agreements that may impact on

COMPLIANT

[. Company makes a full, far, accurate and | COMPLIANT All dlsclosures ore filed through the
timely disclosure 1o the public of every Philippine Stock Exchange and are made
material fact or event that occur, are available Yo the public through the
particularly on the acquisition or disposal Company's website: _ _
of significant assets, which cauld adversely Aitp:/mvaw. poxys.com/public/sec filings.hit
affect the viability or the interest of its =
shareholders and other stakeholders.

2. Board dppoints an independent party ta COMPLIANT

No similar transaction was made during the
covered pericd. However, the Company's
Revised Manual of Corporate Gavernance
provided that the Board shall disclose
material fact or event that occurs,
parficularly on the acquisition or disposal of
significant assets, which could adversely
affect the viability or the inferest of ifs
shareholders and ather stakeholders.
Moreover, the Board of the offeree
company shall appoint an independent
party to evaluate the faimess of the
fransaction price on the acquisition or
disposal of assefs. See link at

http:/fwww. paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf (page 20)

The Company usually discloses the
existence, jusfification and details on
shareholder agreements, voting frust
agreemenls, confidentiality agreements,
and such other agreements that may
impact on the confrol, ownership, and
strategic direction of the company.

Supplement to Recommendation 8.4

1.
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the conftrol, ownership, and strategic
direction of the company.

Recommendation 8.7

Company's corporate gavernance
policies, programs and procedures are
contained in its Manual an Corporate
Governance (MCG).

COMPLIANT

Campany's MCG is submitted to the SEC
and PSE.

COMPLIANT

Optional: Frinciple 8
l.

Campany’'s MCG is posted on its company
website.

updated MCG to disclose any changes in
its corporate governance practices.

Does the company’s Annual Report
disclose the following information:

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

a. Carporate Objectives

However, ne such transaction was made
during the covered period. Thus, no proof
can be provided herein.

Please see the Company's Revised
Manual on Corporate Governance at
http://www paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf

Please see proof of submission of the
Revised Manual on Cerporate
Covernance on 30 May 2017 at
hitp://fwww.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf

(pages 1 ta 2).

Supplement o Recommendation 8.7 '

1. Compdany submits to the SEC and PSE an
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b. Financial performance indicators

c. Non-financial performance indicators

d. Dividend Policy

e. Biographical details {at least age,
academic gudlifications, date of first
appointment, relevant experience,
and other directorships in listed
companies) of all directors

f. AHendance details of each director in
all directors meetings held during the
year

g. Total remuneration of each member of
the board of directors

The Annual Report contains a statement
confirming the company's full compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance
and where there is non-compliance,
identifies and expiains reason for each
such issue.

The Annual Report/Annual CG Report
discloses that the board of directors
conducted areview of the company's
material controls [including operational,
financial and compliance controls] and
risk management systems.

The Annual Report/Annual CG Report
contains a statement from the board of
directors or Audit Committee commenting
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con the adequacy of the company's
infernal controls/risk management systems.

5. The company discloses in the Annual
Report the key risks to which the company
is materialiy exposed to (i.e. financial,
operational including IT, environmental,
social, economic).

Principle 9: The company should establish siandards for the appropriate selection of an external auditor, and exercise effective oversight of the

same 1o strengthen the external auditor's independence and enhance audit guality.

Recommendation 7.1

1. Audit Commiltee has arobust process for COMPLIANT The Company’s Audit and Risk
approving and recommending the Management Committee Charter
appointment, reappointment, removal, delineates the process for ’r_he appraval,
and fees of the external auditors. recommendalion for appointment,
reappointment, removal and fees of
external audifors.
http:/ fwewew. paxys.comfpublic /board com
mitteas.hirnl
2. The appointment, reappointment, COMPLIANT In the Company's Annual Stockholders’

rermoval, and fees of the external auditoris
recommended by the Audit Committee,
approved by the Board and ratified by the
shareholders.

Meeting held last December 6, 2017, the
reappointment of the Company's external
auvditor, Reyes, Tacandong & Co {RT & Co)
has been ratified and gppraved by the
shareholders.

A copy of the Minutes of the Annual
Stockholders' Meeting has been provided
and disclosed to the Exchange last
December 6, 2017.
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o/ fwww poxys.comy/public/other disclo
suras. htmil

3. Forremoval of the external auditor, the
reasons for removal or change are
disclosed to the regulators and the public
through the company website and
required disclosures.

Supplement to Recommendation 7.1
. Company nas a policy of rotating the lead
audit partner every five years.

Recommendation 9.2
1. Audit Committee Charter includes the
Audit Committee’s responsibility on:

i. assessing the integrity and
independence of external auditors;

ii. exercising effective oversight to
review and monitor the external

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

The cempany's external auditor has been
reappointed for the year 2017,

Should the removal of the Company's
external auditor take place, the Company
shall comply and provide the necessary
disclosures to the regulators and the public.

The Company's Revised Manual on
Corperate Governance indicates that the
external auditor or the lead and signing
audit partner shauld be rotated or
chandged every five (5) years or earlier.

The Company's current external auditor
and lead audit partner has served a
cumulative term of four (4} years as of
December 31, 2017.

hitp:/ fwww, paxys.caom/public /files/Revised

A link to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee Charter has been provided in
the Company's website:

hitoy fveww . oaxys.comfoubhc/board com
mittees.himi
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auditor's independence and
objectivity; and

if. exercising effective oversight to
review and monitor the
effectiveness of the audit process,
taking intfo consideration relevant
Philippine professional and
regulatory requirements,

Audit Committee Charter contains the
Committee’s responsibility on reviewing
and monitoring the external auditor’s
suifability and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

Supplement to Recommendations 9.2
1.

Audit Committee ensures that the external
auditor is credible, competent and has the
ability to understand complex related
party transactions, its counterparties, and
valuations of such transactions.

COMPLIANT

COMPLUANT

A link to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee Charter has been provided in
the Company's website:

hitp:/iwww.paxys com/public/board com
mittees hir

Recommendation 7.3
I

Audit Committee ensures that the external
auditor has adequate quality conirol
procedures.

Company discloses the nature of non-
audit services performed by ifs external

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

A link to the Audit and Risk Management
Committee Charter has been provided in
the Company’s website:

nttp:fwww paxys com/public/board com

by the Company's external cuditor, Reyes

Tacandong and Co. (RTC), far the year

2017.

Thera are no non-audit services conducted
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auditor in the Annual Report to deal with
the potential conflict of inferest. Should a non-audit work he engaged
going forward, the Company shall provide
the necessary disclosures in the Annual
Report of the Company.

2. Audit Committee stays alert for any COMPLIANT The Company's Revised Manual on
potential conflict of interest situations, Corporate Governance delineates that the
given the guidelines or policies on non- Audit and Risk Management Committee
audit services, which could be viewed as functions include the review of nen-audit
impairing the external auditor's objectivity. services performed by the external audifors

and its responsikility for ensuring that the
objectivity of external auditors are
maintained.

hitp:/ fwewiw . pdxys . com/ public files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf page 14

supplement to Recommendalion 9.3

|. Fees paid for non-audit services do not COMPLIANT Ihere are no non-audit services conducted
outweigh the fees paid for gudit services. by the Company’s external auditor, Reyes
Tacandong and Co. (RTC), for the year
2017.

Should g non-audit work be engaged
going forward, the Company shall provide
the necessary disclosures regarding fees
paid in the Annual Report of the Company.

Additional Recammendation to Principle 9

1. Company's external auditor is duly COMPLANT Details of the company's external auditor
accredited by the SEC under Group A are as follows:
category. 1. Name: Reyes Tacandong & Co

2. Address: 26 Floor Citibank Tower
8741 Pasec de Rexas Makah City

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 210ec2017
Page 49 of 69



3. Audit engagement partner:
Haydee M. Reyes

4, SEC Accreditation No. 0663-AR-3
valid until August 30, 2020ame,
address, contact number of the
audit firm.

Company's external auditor agreed to be
subjected to the SEC Oversight Assurance
Review (SOAR) Inspection Program
conducted by the SEC's Office of the
Generdl Accountant (OGA).

COMPLIANT

Reyes, Tacandong & Co. shall submit itself
to any review and inspection by the SEC.

Principle 10: The company should ensure that the material and repcrtable non-financial and sustainability issues are disclosed.

 Recommendation 10.1

Board has a clear and focused policy on
the disclosure of non-financial information,
with emphasis on the management of
economic, environmental, social and
governance (EESG) issues of its business,
which underpin sustainability.

COMPLIANT

The Company's Revised Manual on
Corporate Governance provides that “The
Board shall have a clear and focused
policy on the disclosure of non-financial
information, with emphasis on the
management of economic,
environmental, social, and governance
issues of its business, which underpin
sustainability. The Corporation shall adopt
a globally recognized standard/framework
in reporting sustainability and non-financial
issues. See link at
nttp:/fwww.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (pages 20 to 21).
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2. Compony odopts o globolly recognized
stondard/fromework in reporting
sustainability and non-financial issues.

Principle 11: The company should maintain a comerehensive and cosl-efficient communicatlion channel tor disseminating relevant information. This

NON-
COMPIANT

channel is crucial for informeaed decision-making by investars. stakeholders and other interested users.

Recommendation 11,1

1. Company hos media and analysts'
briefings as channels of communication to
ensure the timely and accurate
dissemination of public, material and
relevant information to its shareholders
and other investors.

Supplemental to Principle 11
1. Company nas a websife disclosing up-to-
date information on the following:

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANI

a. Financial statements/reports {latest
quarterly)

COMPLIANT

The Company uses its website

www . paxys.com for its notices, quarterly
reporting, current reporting, and other
disclosures.

Allreguired disclosures and invesfor
information are available to public through
the company’s website ot

WA, DOXVS .COTTL

The Company has no Sustainobility
Report os it does not currently have
any investment on what it would
consider will require policies that
would hove on impact on the local
communities, indigencus people,
the environment, energy resources,
or greenhouse gas emission.
However, the Company is willing to
comply with the Sustainability Report
Framework that may be required by
the SEC. The Company has the
policies, procedures and processes
in place to ensure that it always in
compliance with all labor laws and
regulations.
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b. Materials provided in briefings fo COMPLIANT
analysts and media

c. Downloadable annual report COMPLIANT
d. Notice of ASM and/or SSM COMPLIANT
e. Minutes of ASM and/or SSM COMPLIANT
f. Company's Articles of Incorporation COMPLIANT

and By-Laws

Addilional Recommendation fo Principle 11
1. Company cemplies with SEC-prescribed COMPLIANT The company welbsite is at
website template. WWW. DAXYS.COM.

Internal Control System and Risk Management Framework
Principle 12: Tc ensure the integrity, transparency and proper governance in the conduct of its affairs, the company should have a strong and
effective internal control system and enterprise risk management framewaork.
Recommendation 12.1
1. Company has an adequate and effective | COMPLIANT The Company’s Beard has established an
internal control system in the conduct of its adequate and effective internal control
business. system in the conduct of business.

An Internal Audit Charter has been
approved and in place.

2. Company has an adequate and effective | COMPLIANT The Company has established process in
enterprise risk management framework in assessing its risks, its impact, and risk
the conduct of its business. freatment. Given the size and current
complexity of the business, the current
process can be done without the need of
a formal enterprise risk management
framework.

The Company will review and assess the
need to adopt a formal enterprise risk
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Supplement to Recommendations 12.1

management framework in a way of
process improvement,

Company has a formal comprehensive
enterprise-wide compliance program
covering compliance with laws and
relevant regulations that is annually
reviewed. The program includes
appropriafe fraining and gwareness
initiatives to facilitate understanding,
acceptance and compliance with the
said issuances.

COMPLIANT

Being a publicly listed company and in line
with the corporate governance policies of
the Company, the Board has established
system to ensure compliance with iaws
and relevant regulations.

The company has duly-appointed ¢
Compliance Officer to ensure that this
process is in place and the review is being
done periodically and as needed.

Optional: Recommendation 12.1

1. Company has a governance process on T
issues including disrtuption, cyber security,
and disaster recovery, to ensure that all
key risks are idenftified, managed and
reporied fo the board.

Recommendation 12.2

1. Company has in place an independent
internal gudit funchion that provides an
independent and objective assurence,
and consulling services designed to add
value ond improve the company's
operations.

Recommendatfion 12.3

COMPLIANT

The internal audit function cumrently rests
under the responsibilities of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee. This
function is independent from the company
operaficns and was designed to add value
in arder to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of company operations.
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1. Company has a qualified Chief Audit COMPLIANT The independent infernal audit functicn is
Executive [CAE) appoinfed by the Board. currently being performed by the
Company's Chief Audit Executive (Sheri
2. CAE oversees and is responsible for the COMPLIANT Inocencio).
infernal audit activity of the organization,
including that portion that is outsourced to Please refer to the company website for
a third party service provider. the list of Company’s executive officers:
hitp fwew paxyvs.com/fpublic/board com
mittess.html
3. In case of a fully outsourced internal audit | NOT The Company did not outsource its internal
activity, a qualified independent APPLICABLE audit activity for the period covered.

Recommendation 12.4
I

execufive or senior management
personnel is assigned the responsibility for
managing the fully ocutsourced internal
audit activity.

Company has a separate risk
management function to identily, assess
and menitor key risk exposures,

COMPLIANT

The Company nas a risk management
function which is separate the cperations.
This is usually done at the top management
level with inputs coming from and the
results cascaded down up to the level of
employees.

This Chief Risk Officer has been duly-
appointed and is tasked to report on the
enterprise-wide risk to the Board through
the Audit, Risk Management and Related
Party Transactions Committee,

Please refer to Annex 8 of this report for the
Risk Management Framewaork of the
Company
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Supplement to Recommendation 12.4

1. Company seeks external technical COMPLIANT The Company nas compefent
support in risk management when such management team and people to carry
competence is not available internally. out risk management aclivity and there is

no need yet to seek external technical
support for the period covered.

Should the need for external support arises,
the Company will tfap external parties for its
requirementsin accordance with the
Companies policies and procedures.

Recommendaiion 12.5
. Inmanaging the company's ®isk COMFPLIANT The nsk management iunction 1s currently

Management System, the company has a being performed by the Company's Chief
Chief Risk Otticer (CRO}, who is the Risk Officer [Divine Gandeza).
ullimate champion of Enterprise Risk

Management (ERM]). Please refer to the company website for

the list of Company’s executive officers;

2. CRO has adequate authority, stature, it/ fwww. paxys . com/public/board com
resources and support fo fulfill his/her mitlees.himi
responsibilifies.

Additional Recommendation to Frinciple 12

1. Company's Chief Executive Cificer and COMFLUANT Flease refer to Annex 6 for a copy ol the
Chief Audit Executive aftest in writing, at statement signed by the CEO and CAE
least annually, that a sound internal audit, certifying that a sound internal audiit,
control and compliance system is in place contrel and compliance system is in place

and working effectively. and working effectively.

Cullivating a Synergic Relationship with Shareholders
le 13: The company should real all sharehalders taitly and equilably, and also recoanize, protect and facilitate the exercise of their rights.
Recommendation 13.1
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1. Boord ensures thot basic shareholder rights | COMPLIANT Article 6 of the Manual on Corporate
are disclosed in the Manual on Corporate Governance provides for Stockholders'
Governance. Rights and Protection of Minority
Stockholders' Interests at
hitp://www. paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf (pages 18-19}.
2. Boord ensures that basic shareholder rights | COMPLIANT The Company by-lows ot

are disclosed on the company’s website,

Supplement to Recommendation 13.1

http://www.paxys.com/public/files/3.BL.pd

f provides for shareholders’ rights.

1. Company's commaon share has one vote COMPFLIANT ' The Company y-fows at

for one share. http://www paxys.com/public/files/3.BL.pd
I provides for Voting provision [page 4)

2. Board ensures that all shareholders of the COMPLIANT Article 7 of the Company’s Amended
same class are freated equally with Articles of Incorporation provides that the
respect to voting rights, subscription rights company only has common shares. See

di page 7.
The Company By-Laws
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/3.BL.pd
[ further provides for Voling provision {page
4}.

3. Board has an effective, secure, and COMPLIANT The Company's Definitive Information

efficient voling system.

Statement provides for the he Voting
Frocedure. Vcling shall be done via voice
or by raising of hands and the votes cast
for or against the matter submitted shall be
talied by the Corporate Secretary in case
of division of the house. See link at
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http://www. paxys.com/public/files/2016De
finitivelnformationStaiement.pdf page 19.

Board has an effective shareholder voting
mechanisms such as supermajority or
“majority of minority” requirements to
protect minority shareholders against
actions of conirolling shareholders.

COMPLIANT

Under the Company’s Revised Manual on
Corporafe Governance
http:/fwww. paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf [page 19)
Although all stockholders should be freated
equally or without discrimination, minority
stockholders may request in writing the
holding of meeiings and the items for
discussion in the agenda that relate
directly o a legifimate purpose and the
business of the Corporation, subject to the
requirement under the By-laws that such
requesting stockholder is the holder of
record of nof less than one-fourth {1/4} of
the outstanding voting capifal stock of the
Corporation.

Board allows shareholders to call a special
shareholders’ meeting and submif a
proposal for consideration or agenda item
at the AGM or special meeting.

COMPLIANT

The Company's Revised Manual on
Corpeoraie Govemance [page 19)
htin://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf provides that the
Notice of Annual or Special Shareholders’
Meeting will contain sufficient and relevant
information and will be sent fo the
shareholders at least, as much as
praciicable, twenfy-eight (28] days before
the meeting.

The Board also encourages active
shareholder participation by making the
result of the votes faken during the most
recent Annual or Special Shareholders'
Meetling publicly available by the next
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working day. In additicn, the Minutes of the
Annual and Special Shareheolders' Meeting
shall be available in the company wekbsite

within five {5) business days from the end of
the meeting.

4. Board clearly articulates and enforces
policies with respect to freatment of
minority shareholders.

COMPLIANT

Under the Company's Revised Manual on
Corporate Governance
hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf the minority
shareholders has the following rights:

(pages 2 to 3) Nomination by minority
shareholders in the Composition of the
Board.

{page 19) minority stockholders may
request in writing the holding of meetings
and the items for discussion in the agenda
that relate directly to a legitimate purpose
and the business of the Corporation,
subject to the requirement under the By-
laws that such requesting stockholder is the
holder of record of not less than one-fourth
{1/4) of the outstanding voting capital
stock of the Corporation.

7. Company has a fransparent and specific
dividend policy.

NON-
COMPLIANT

The Company has not generated
enough profit, and does not see any
dividend declaration in the
immediate future. Should the
opportunity present itself in the
future, i shail accordingly establish a
clear dividend policy which is
contemplated to be a cash
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dividend payout of at least 50% of
net profit.

Optional: Recommendation 13.1

1. Company appecints an independent party
to count and/or validate the votes at the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

Recommendation 13.2

1. Board encourages active shareholder COMPLIANT The notice and agenda of the annual
participation by sending the Notice of stockholders' meeting was sent on 8
Annual and Special Sharehclders' November 2017 or 28 days before the ASM.
Meeting with sufficient and relevant
information at least 28 days before the There was no shareholders’ approval of
meeting. remuneration or any changes therein in the

agenda of the meeting.

See link to the Agendain the Company's
Definitive Information Statement (SEC Form
20-18) at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/2016De
finitivelnformaticnStatement.odf (page 2).

Supplemental to Recommendation 13.2

1. Company's Notice of Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting contains the
following information:

a. The profiles of directors (i.e., age, COMPLIANT See link fo the Profile of Directors in the
academic qualifications, date of first Company's Definitive Information
appointment, experience, and Statement (SEC Form 20-15) at
directorships in other listed companies) http://www.paxys.com/public/files/2016De

finitivelnformationStaterment.pdf (oages 10
1o 13).
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b. Auditors seeking appcinfment/re- COMPLIANT See link 10 the details of the Independent
appointment Public Accountant in the Company's
Definitive Informaticn Statement (SEC Form
20-1S) at
hito://www.paxys.com/public/files/2016De
finitivelnfermationStatement.pdf (page 16).
c. Proxy documents COMPLIANT See link to the Proxy form at

Optional: Recommendation 13.2

1. Company provides rationale for the
agenda items for the annual stockholders
meeting

Recommendation 13.3

1. Board encourages octive shareholaer
participation by making the result of the
votes taken during the most recent
Annual or Special Shareholders' Meeting
publicly ovailable the next working day.

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

htte://www. paxys.com/public/files/2016De
finitivelnformaticnStatement.pdf (pages
114 & 115)

Seelink to the Agenda Details and
rationale in the Cempany's Definitive
Information Statement (SEC Form 20-1S) at
http.//www.paxys.com/public/files/2016De
finitivelnformationStatement.pdf (pages 3
to 5).

See the Company's Disclosure of the
Results of the Annual Stockholders Meeting
dated 6 December 2017 at
http://www.paxys.com/public/files/4617C.

pdf

2. Minutes of the Annual and Special
Shareholders' Meetings were available on
the company website within five busingss
days from the end of the meeting.

NON-
COMPLIANT

The Company is compliant with the
SEC rules on the disclosure of the
Minutes of Annual Stockholders
Meefing. The Company thus
disclose the same after its approval.
In order to provide an advance
information 1o the PSE and SEC, the
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Supplement fo Recommendation 13.3

|. Board ensures the attendance of the
external auditor and other relevant
individuals to answer shareholders
questions during the ASM and SSM.

Recommendation 13.4

1. Board makes available, at the eption of @
shareholder, an aiternative dispute
mechanism fo resolve infra-corporate
disputesin an amicable and effective
manner.

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

Representatives from Reyes Tacandong
and Co. and Rizal Commercial Banking
Corp, Stock Tronsfer Department

were present during the ASM.

No ceonllict has arisen between the
company and any of its stockholders, third
parties or regulatory authorifies.

Company has disclosed the results
of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting
on December 7, 2017 with the
following link:

htto:/fvweww. poxys.com/public/files/
46.17C.pdl,

The Company, however, is not
compliant with the
recommendation that the disclosure
should be made within five business
days.

2. The alternative dispute mechanism is
included in the company's Manual on
Corporate Governance.

Recommendation 13.5

1. Boara establishes an Investor Eelations
Office (IRO) fo ensure constant
engagement with its shareholders.

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT

See link to the Company’s Manual on
Corporate Governance at
hitp//www. paxys.com/public/files/Revised

AmmendedManual.pdf (page ? item k)

The Company's Corporate Information
Officer serves as its Investor Relations
Officer with details below:
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1. Name of the person: Atty. Mayette Tapia
2. Telephone number: +632-250-3800

3. Fax number: {+632) 250-3801

4. E-mail address: mayette tapia
@paxys.com

2. RO s present al every shareholder’s COMPLIANT The IRO was present during the ASM.
meeling.

Supplemental Recommendations to Principle 13
1. Board avoids anti-takeover measures or COMPLANT The Company has nat yet encountered
similar devices that may entrench any fakeover situations requiring these
ineffective management or the existing measures.
controling shareholder group

2. Company has at least thirty percent (30%) | NON- The Company is compliant with the
public float to increase liquidity in the COMPLIANT public float regquirement as it has
market, aboul 14.96% public float, which is

way above the required 10%.

The Company is, however, not
compliant with the
recommendation of at least 30%
public float.

Optional: Principle 13

1. Company has policies and practices to
encourage sharenolders 1o engage with
he company beyond the Annual
Stockholders” Meeting

2. Company practices secure electronic
voling in agbsentia at the Annual
Shareholders' Meeting.
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Duties to Stakeholders

Principle 14: The rights of stakeholders established by law, by contractual relations and through voluntary commitments must be respected. Where
stakeholders' rights and/or interests are at stake, stakeholders should have the opportunity to obtain prompt effective redress for the violation of
their righis.
Recommendation 14.1
1. Board identifies the campany’s various COMPLIANT Please find details of the Company's
stakeholders and premotes cooperation shareholders at
between them and the company in hitp://www.paxys.com/public/files/24 Stoc
creoting wealth, growth and sustainobility. kHolders.pdf
The Revised Manual on Corporate
Governance at
hitp://www . paxys.com/public/files/Revised
AmmendedManual.pdf provides that the
Board shall ensure a high standard of best
practice for the Corporation and its
stockholders and other stakeholders. Article
6 thereof also provides for the Stockholders'
Rights and Protection of Minority
Stockholders’ Interests (pages 18 fo 19)
Recommendation 14.2
1. Board establishes clear policies and COMPLIANT Please refer to Annex 18 of this report for
programs fo provide a mechanism on the the summary of Company pclicies related
fair treatment and protection of to the fair treat and protection of
stakeholders. shareholders.
Recommendation 14.3
1. Board adopts a fransparent framework COMPLIANT
and process that allow stakeholders to Details
communicate with the company and to (1) Objectives To build the trust and
obtain redress for the violation of their confidence of our
rights. stakeholders in the
company's ability to
create value.
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dispute resolution system so that conflicts
and differences with key stakeholders is
settled in g fair and expeditious manner.

Company does not seek any exemplion
from the application of o law, rule or
regulation especiolly when it refers to @
corporate governance issue. If an
exemption was sought, the company

COMPLIANT

To create
understanding and
awareness of the
company amongst
the investing

community.

(2) Principles Fair disclosure of
information;
bifateral
communication

(3) Modes of Company webpsite,

Communicctions PSE

4] Investors Detdils provided

Relations Officer above/ Same as
the Corporate

Information Officer

{5) Whistleblowing Flease see link af
policy hitp:/ fwww.paxys.c
om/public/compan
y_policies himi

company and any of its stockhclders, third
parties or regulatory authorities,

The Company has no existing request for
exemption.

supplement fo Recommendation 14.3
| 1. Company establishes an alfernative COMPLIANT No conflict has arisen between the ;

Additional Recommendations to Frinciple 14

I.

SEC Form — I-ACGR * Updated 21Dec2017

Page 64 of 69




discloses the reason for such action, as
well as presents the specific steps being
faken fo finally comply with the applicable
lkaw, rule ar regulatian.

Optional: Principle 14
T s [

2. Campany respects intellectual praperty
rights.

ompany discloses its policies and
practices that address customers’ welfare

COMPLIANT

The Campany has no specific transactian
invalving intellectual property rights during
the covered pericd.

- 2. Company discloses its policies and

practices that address supplier/contractor
selection procedures

Principle 15; A mecnanism for emplayee participation snould be developed to creale a symbiatic enviranment, realize the company’s goals and

~articipate inits corporate governance processes,

Recommendation 15.1

Baard establishes palicies, programs and
procedures that encourage employees to
actively participate in the realization of the
company's geals and in ifs governance,

. Company has a reward/compensation
palicy that accounts for the perfermance

COMPLIANT

COMPLIANI

The Company recagnizes the confributions
af its emplayees in the achievement of
company godals and objectives. Thraugh its
Human Resource, the Company has
established several palicies and programs
concerning health, safety, welfare, fraining
and development and incentive or
rewards which are designed ta encourage
the emplayees ta stay praductive and
motivated at wark.

Supplement to Recommendaticn 15.1
1

The Company has an established
Emplayee Equity Plan {EEP). The maximum
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of the company beyond short-term
financial measures.

number of shares that may be issued as
approved by the SEC is 50,000,000 shares
and shall terminate on the 10 anniversary
after the effective date on May 1, 2005,
The aggregaie number of options granted
and exercised is 15,230,000 from 2005 up to
2009. There are no opfions granted and
exercised from 2010 1o date.

2. Company has policies and practices on
health, safety and welfare of its
employees.

COMPLIANT

The Company implements an integrated
approach to employees' safety, health
and welfare. Employees are provided with
a comprehensive coverage for
hospitalizatian and medical services
including preventive medicines. Health
and safety awareness are reinforced to the
employees through various Human
Resource activities, information blasts and
bulletin, Various organizations are likewise
invited to the Company premises to
conduct frainings on health and safety of
the employees or select employees are
designated to cascade to all employees.
The Company also ensures that the
workplace is compliant to all applicable
safety standards and laws.

hite:f fwww . paxys.com/oublic/conduct et

hics.niml (page 5)

3. Company has policies and practices on
training and development of its
employees.

COMPLIANT

The Company ensures that its employees
are equipped with the appropriate skills
and training to carry out the tasks and
responsibilities assigned.
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Recommendation 15.2

Through its Human Resource, the Company
has implemented various programs an
training and development of ifs
employees. The frainings are either done
in-house through the Company’s Training
Depariment or oulsourced for more
specialized and highly technical needs.

1. Board sets the tone and makes a stand COMPLIANT Corrupt practices in the Company
against corrupt practices by adopting an constitute an offense which is subject 1o
anti-corruption pelicy and program in its immediate termination. This is expressly
Code of Conduct. written in the Company's Code of

Conductl. The same was alsa included in
the Group's policy on Company's Code of
Ethics which was approved at the Beoard
level,

kit fweewew. poxys.com/public/conduct el
hics.btml (page é to 7)

2. Board disseminates the policy and COMPLIANT The company policies and pragrams are
program to employees across the discussed during New Hire Crientalian and
organization through trainings to embed signed-off by individual employees. A
them in the company’s culture., copy is also made available and

accessible to the employees thraugh the
company’s digital shared storage.

Supplement to Recommendation 15.2

1. Company has clear and stringent policies | COMPLIANT Bricery and all forms of corruptian are not

and precedures on curbing and penalizing

employee involvement in offering, paying
and receiving bribes.

tolerated in the Company. Any employee
caught and proven guilty of such practices
are subject for immediate termination.
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For the period covered, there are no
employees guilty nor reported for possible
corrupt practices.

Please further refer to our response in
Recommendation 15.2.1.

Recommendation 15.3
1. Board establishes a suitable framework for | COMPLIANT The Company is committed to high

whistleblowing that allows employees to standards of ethical, moral, and legal
freely communicate their concerns about conduct. Directors, officers and employees
illegal or unethical practices, without fear are encouraged to report suspected
of retaligtion anomalies, illegal acts, malpractice and
2. Board establishes a suitable framework for | COMPLIANT violations in the organization’s Code of
whistleblowing that allows employees to Discipling, Code of Ethics and Conduct
have direct access o an independent and other company rules and regulations
member of the Board or a unit created to without fear of retaliation, punishment or
handle whistleblowing concerns. unfair freatment.
3. Board supervises and ensures the COMPLIANT
enforcement of the whistleblowing Whistleblowing communication channels
framework. are made available and anyone can

report any alleged illegal or unethical
practices. The reports received will be
reported directly to the members of Board.

http: www paxys.com/public/company o
olicies.him|

Principle 16: The company should be socially responsible in all its dealings with the communities where it operates. It should ensure that its
interactions serve its environment and stakeholders in a positive and progressive manner that is fully supportive of its comprehensive and balanced

development.
‘Recommendation 14.1
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1. Company recognizes and places
importance on the interdependence
between business and society, and
promotes a mutually beneficial
relaticnship that allows the company 1o
grow its business, while contributing to the
advancement of the society where it
operates.

Optional: Principle 16

. Company ensuras that ifs value chain is
environmentally friendly or is consistent
with promoting sustainable development

COMPLIANT

The Company is committed tc contribule
in the society and environment where it
operates.

From social outreach and feeding
programs, 1o initiatives that protect the
environment and educational scholarships,
the Company continues to apply
innovative solutions in its CSR programs by
agiigning and incorporating CSR strategy
across all operational functions.

2. Company exerts effort 1c inferact posifively
with the communities in which it operates
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), this Integrated Annual
Corpor@IE Governance Report (I-FACGR) _is signed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
{ZON CITY on__ |4 Er."‘ .

SIGNATURES

W

TARCISIO M. ME LA
Chairman of the Board

/QﬁNTONIO A. LICHAUCO

Independent Director

GEORGE Y. SYCIP
Independent Director

Corporate Secretary
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), this Integrated Annual
Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR) _is signed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of

QUEZON CTTY on__. 1 4 MAR 2018

SIGNATURES

e dos

TARCISIC M. MEDALLA
Chairman of the Board

JOSE ANTCNIC A. LICHAUCC
Independent Director

W
GEORGEIY. SYCIP
Independent Director

PABLITC C. LIM
Compliance Officer

\LA{«MR
MAYETTE H'TAPIA

Corporate Secretary
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 1 4 MAR 2018 at___ OUEZON CITY  affiants exhibited to me their

competent evidence of identity, as follows:

Name Competent Evidence of Identification
Passport No. Date of Issue Place of Issue
Tarcisio M. Medalla EB9971636 13 January 2014 DFA Manila
Jose Antonio A. Lichauco EC4151525 12 May 2015 DFA NCR East
George Y. Sycip 506254556 7 January 2015 USA
Pablito O. Lim P5165853A 28 November 2017 DFA Calasiao
Mayette H. Tapia EC1939186 21 August 2014 DFA NCR East

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto affixed my signature and Notarial Seal.

NOTARY PUBLIC
Doc. No.: /&f/&? /1 /}ﬁc
Page No..___ T ATTY. 'u:l':ﬂfl_‘_{‘f,;r Hg (VAR
Book No.: _~/1I{; O r{“l u'c "
Series of 2018. friaBlcers P b oo b

F Harvard 51 Cubpo. QC
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PAXYS ANNEX 1 of PAXYS [-AGCR

CHARTER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Paxys, Inc. {the “Corporation” or “Paxys”) is the
supreme authority in matters of governance and in managing the business of the Corporation.
Within their authority under the Corporation Code and other applicable laws and the By-laws
of the Corporation (the “By-laws"), the Directors, acting as a Board, have the fullest powers to
regulate the concerns of the Corporation according to their best judgment.

The Board is responsible to promote and adhere to the principles and best practices of
corporate governance, to foster the long-term success of the Corporation and to secure its
sustained competitiveness in the global environment in a manner consistent with its fiduciary
responsibility.

The Board shall exercise its powers and duties in the best interest of the Corporation, its
shareholders, and other stakeholders.

Section 2. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
1. Number of Directors. - The Board shall have seven (7) members.

2. Board Competencies and Diversity. - The Board shall be composed of members who
possess the necessary knowledge, skills and experience required to properly perform the
duties of the Board.

The Board shall encourage the selection of a mix of competent Directors, each of whom
can add value and independent judgment in the formulation of sound corporate strategies
and policies. Careful attention must be given to ensure that there is independence and
diversity, and appropriate representation of women in the Board to the greatest extent
possible.

3. Review of Board Profile. - The Board shall regularly review its composition, taking into
account the evolving requirements of the Corporation and best practices in corporate
governance.

4, Independent Directors — The Board shall have such number of Independent Directors
as may be required by law and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC} and of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) (hereafter, the “Philippine
Requirements”) and the standards or criteria set by the Association of Southeast Asian
Nations (ASEAN) for the strengthening of the ASEAN capital market development and
integration for the establishment of an ASEAN Economic Community (hereafter, the
"ASEAN Standards").
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To be considered independent, a Director shall, apart from his fees and shareholdings,
hold no interests or relationships with the Corporation that may hinder his independence
from the Corporation, Management, or shareholders which could, or could reasonably be
perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying
out his responsibilities as a Director of the Corporation. For this purpose, an Independent
Director shall submit to the Corporate Secretary a letter of confirmation stating that he
holds no interests affiliated with the Corporation, Management or controlling shareholder
at the time of his election or appointment and/or re-election as a Director.

Section 3. BOARD INDEPENDENCE AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

It is the responsibility of each Director to promote the best interest of the Corporation.
Therefore, in making decisions, they should only pursue the interest of the Corporation, and
must not consider their personal interest.

1.

Disclosure of Interest. - Each Director shall disclose any conflict of interest annually.
Director with any material conflict of interest that has been determined to be permanent
in nature shall be disgqualified from the Board.

Notwithstanding the precautions set by the annual disclosure of conflict of interest, a
Director shall abstain from pariicipating in the discussion of, and voting on, any matter
where he is in conflict of interest.

Dealing in Corporation’s Shares. - In line with the insider trading policy of the
Corporation, each Director is required to report to the Board within three (3) business
days from dealing in the shares of stock of the Corporation (the “Shares”).

Number of Independent Non-executive Directors. - In line with best practice in
corporate governance and in accordance with the ASEAN Standards, it is the
Corporation’s goal to have Independent Non-executive Directors comprising at least 2/3
of the Board.

Policy on Multiple Board Seats. - The Corporation shall ensure that adequate time and
attention is given to the fuifiment of the Directors of their duties. The Independent
Directors and Non-executive Directors shall hold no more than five board seats in publicly-
listed companies.

Confidentiality Rule - Directors shall keep confidential all the information contained in
the confidential reports or discussions. They shall alsc ensure that all persons who have
access to the same information likewise comply with this rule. The confidentiality rule
applicable to incumbent Directors shali continue to apply to former Directors.
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Section 4. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors shall be elected by the Corporation's stockholders entitled to vote at the annual
meeting in accordance with the By-laws and the Voting Procedure for Annual Stockholders'’
Meeting.

1.

Nomination of Directors., — Pursuant to the Corporation Code, any shareholder,
including mincrity shareholders, shall have the right to nominate candidates for the Board.
The list of names of the nominees to the Board of Directors, together with the written
consent of the nominees shall be filed and submitted to the Nomination and Governance
Committee through the office of the Corporate Secretary at least thirty (30) business days
prior to the date set for the annual meeting wherein they will be elected.

Required Vote. - For the election of Directors, it is necessary for one-half plus one of the
outstanding shares of stock to be present or represented in the annual stockholders’
meeting.

Ownership of Corporation Shares. - No person shall be elected nor be competent to
hold the office of Director unless at least one (1) share of stock of the Corporation shall
stand in his name in the books of the Corporation at the time of his election.

Ground for Disqualification for Nomination. - No person shall qualify or be eligible for
nomination or election to the Board of Directors if he is engaged in any business which
competes with or is antagonistic to that of the Corporation in accordance with the By-
laws.

Term of Office. - Directers shall held office for a term of one (1) year, more or less,
immediately upon their election and until their successors shall have been elected and
gualified in accordance with the By-Laws.

Term Limits for Independent Directors. - Independent Directors can serve as such for
five (5) consecutive years, provided that service for a period of at least six (6) months
shall be equivalent to one (1) year, regardless of the manner by which the Independent
Director position was relinguished or terminated.

Re-election of Independent Directors. - After completion of the five-year service pericd,
an Independent Director shall be ineligible for election as such in the Corporation unless
the Independent Director has undergone a “cooling off” period of two (2) years, provided,
that during such period, the Independent Director concerned has not engaged in any
activity that under existing rules of the SEC disqualifies a person from being elected as
Independent Director of the Corparation.

An Independent Director re-elected as such in the Corporation after the "cooling off’
period can serve for another four (4) consecutive years under the conditions mentioned
in paragraph 6 above.
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Disassociation of Independent Directors. - After serving as Independent Director for
nine (9) years, the Independent Director shall be perpetually barred from being elected
as such in the Corporation, without prejudice to being elected as Independent Director in
other companies outside of the business conglomerate, where applicable, under the
same conditions provided for in the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Filling of Vacancies/Succession Planning. - In case any vacancy or vacancies should
occur on the Board of Directors other than removal or expiration of term, due to death,
resignation or other causes, the remaining Directors, if still consisting a quorum, may fill
said vacancies by election from among the stockholders and the stockholders so elected
shall act as members of said Board until the new Board of Directors is elected. In case of
the vacancy of the position of the Chairman, the appointed Vice-Chairman shall perform
his duties and responsibilities. The Board will decide of the same Vice-Chairman may
also serve as the President/CEO of the Corporation or if there is a need to appoint another
officer for the latter position.

Section 5. BOARD MEETINGS

1.

Frequency of Meetings. - The Board shall meet at least six {6) times each calendar year.
It shall hold meetings before the start of the financial year, immediately after the annual
meeting of stockholders, at least once every quarter, and on such other days that it may
designate.

It may be convened in special meeting by the Chairman or at least the request majority
of the directors.

Quorum. — Two-thirds (2/3) of the number of Directors as fixed in the articles of
incorporation shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of corporate business.

Attendance. - Directors are encouraged to attend all Board meetings, either in person or
via teleconferencing facility. A Director who fails, without any justifiable cause, to attend
at least 75% of the total number of Board meetings during any term shall not be eligible
for re-election.

Notice of Meeting. - The Board meetings shall be announced at least two weeks in
advance, Notice of meetings may be given by any customary means of communication
(e.g. by e-mail, in writing, by telephone, by telefax, etc.). The notice shall specify the time
and place of the meeting and include a detailed agenda. As a rule, Board materials are
to be distributed to all Directors at least five (5) business days prior to each Board meeting.

Chairman of the Meeting. - Board meetings shall be chaired by the Chairman of the
Board or, in his or her absence, by the Vice Chairman.
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Matters for Discussion in Meetings. - In any Board meeting, decisions may be made
on matters not included in the distributed meeting agenda only if there are no objections
posed by any member of the Board.

Minutes of the Meeting. - Minutes of the Board meetings shall be taken and recorded
by the Office of the Corporate Secretary. Minutes shall be signed by the chairman of the
meeting and by the individual who has been appointed to take notes during the meeting.

Executive Sessions. - At least once a year, the Non-executive Directors must meet
without any executives present.

Section 6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

1.

Duties, Powers and Attributes of the Board. - The Board of Directors shall have the
following duties, powers and attributes, in addition to those assigned to it by the
Corporation Code or other applicable law and the By-Laws which are not set forth herein:
(a) Adopt, continuously review, monitor the implementation of the corporate strategy;

(b) Determine the period, manner and conditions under which the Corporation shall
engage in the kinds of business comprised in Article |l of the Articles of Incorporation;

(c) Review the vision and mission statement of the Corporation every year;

{d) Determine the manner in which the corporate capital shall be invested, subject to the
provisions of Article Il of the Corporation’s By-Laws;

{e) Make rules for the internal regulation of the Corporation;

(f) Create committees and other bedies it may deem advantagecus or necessary in
running the affairs of the Corporation;

(g) Determine the creation of branches, agencies, office departments of any class, under
the conditions it may deem convenient;

(h) Decide as to the safekeeping of the funds of the Corporation, open current accounts,
fixed deposit accounts and savings accounts with any bank authorized to operate in
the Philippines and/or abroad;

(i) Approve the budgets and general expense accounts of the Corporation each year and
each guarter, if necessary;

(i) Fix annually the percentage to be written off on all capital expenditures of the
Corporation such as buildings, furniture and fixtures, etc. and determine the
distribution of profits and dividends;

{K) Submit annually to the annual meeting of stockholders the Balance Sheet, profit and
Income Statement and Annual Report on the condition of the Corporation;

() Call special meetings;

{m) Authorize any other person or persons it may deem fit to purchase, sell, or
mortgage the real or personal properties of the Corporation;

(n) Authorize any other person or persons it may deem fit to cancel mortgages or pledges
executed as securities for loans and bonds when the mortgages have been repaid to
the Corporation and when the bonds have heen cancelled;

(o) Determine the time and manner of issuance of unissued stocks of the Corporation;
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(p) Setitle any doubts that may arise relative to the interpretation of the Corporation's By-
Laws and supply any omissions, reporting thereon to the stockholders' general
meeting for such acticn as it may see fit to take;

(q) Conduct an annual performance assessment of the Board, the individual Directors,
the board committees, the President and CEQ, and other key management officials.
Attached as Annex “A" Guidelines in Conducting Performance Assessments.

(r) Oversee the process of disclosure and communications of relevant corporate
information in accordance with applicable laws, rules, and company policies.

2. Adherence to the Code of Conduct and Ethics. - The Board shall ensure that all
Directors, executives and employees adhere to the Corporation’s Code of Conduct and
Ethics. The Board shall adopt measures for the strict implementation and monitering of
compliance with the Code.

3. Reporting Responsibility of the Management. - Management shall inform the Board
regularly, promptly and comprehensively about any issues concerning the Corporation's
strategy, risk management, and compliance. Management shall regularly update the
Board of the implementation of the Corporation’s strategy and explain variances from the
approved plans and targets.

4. Approval of the Financial Statements. - Based on the report by the Audit, Risk and
Related Party Transactions Committee, the Board shall, with the help of independent
auditors, approve the financial statements of the Corpoeraticon.

5. Approval of Annual Plans and Budgets. — The Board shall be responsible in approving
the annual plans and budget of the Corporation, as well as the corresponding investments
and personnel movements.

Section 7. THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

1. Powers of the Chairman. - The Chairman of the Board is the legal representative of the
Corporaticn and has powers:

(a) To preside at all of stockholders’ meetings and meetings of the Board;

(b) To cast the deciding vote in case of a tie in the stockholders' meetings or in the Board
meetings;

(c) To exercise such other powers which are given him in the By-laws.

2. Chairman of Board Meetings. - The Chairman of the Board shall chair all Board
meetings, or in case of his absence, the Vice Chairman shall automatically take his place
as Acting Chairman of the Board.

The Chairman of the Board shall ensure that all Board members are allowed to freely
express their cpinions about any matter being discussed.
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Section 8, CORPORATE SECRETARY

It shall be the duty of the Corporate Secretary, who must be a citizen and a resident of the
Philippines, to prepare and keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and stockholders
and attend to the correspondence and files of the Corporation, to sign, jointly with the
President, all stock certificates, keep and affix the corporate seal, record all transfers of stock
and cancellations and keep all stock certificates transferred, likewise, keep a list in alphabetical
order of all stockholders of the Corporation and of their residences and the shares owned by
each, and to perform all other duties which may be assigned to him by the Board.

Section 9. BOARD COMMITTEES

1. Creation of Board Committees. - The Board may create such committees (each a
“Board Committee”) as it may deem necessary to support it in the performance of its
functions and in accordance with the By-Laws and to aid in good governance.

2. Delegation of Rights and Responsibilities to the Board Committees. - The Board
may delegate part of its rights and responsibilities to any of its committees. The
committees shall be composed of Board members and key officers of the Corporation
specifically chosen for their particular background and areas of expertise that will allow
them to adequately perform the functions assigned to their committee. The rights and
responsibilities of each Board committee may be defined in greater detail in specific
committee charters duly approved by the Board.

3. Board Committee Charters. - The Board shall adopt for each Board Committee a charter
providing, among others, the composition of the Board Committee, the qualifications of
the members, the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Board Commitiee and the
rules governing the exercise of those powers or performance of the duties and
responsibilities.

4. Board Committees. - The Board shall constitute an Executive Committee, an Audit, Risk
and Related Party Transaction Committee, a Compensation and Remuneration
Committee, and a Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee.

Section 10. COMPENSATION OF THE BOARD

Non-executive Directors shall be entitled to receive from the Corporation, pursuant to a
resolution of the Board of Directors, fees and other compensation for their services as
Directors. The Board shall have the sole authority, in accordance with a resolution of the
stockholders or the By-laws, to determine the amount, form and structure of the fees and other
compensation of the Directors.
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Section 11. ORIENTATION AND CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR
DIRECTORS

Prior to assuming office, all new Directors shall underge orientation program on the
Corporation’s business and corporate structure, its vision, mission and corporate strategy, the
By-laws, and Manual of Corporate Governance, and other relevant matters essential for the
effective performance of their duties and responsibilities.

Directors shall likewise be required to undergo training and continuing education programs to
further their knowledge and assist in their development as Directors.

Section 12. MISCELLANEOUS

1. Access to Information. - The Board shall have reasonably free and full access to all
relevant information, data, records, properties and perscnnel of the Corporation.

2. Technical Assistance. - The Board may invite such members of Management and other
persons to its meetings and may secure independent expert advice as it may deem
desirable or appropriate.

3. Annual Review. - This Charter shall be reviewed by the Board annualily.

4, Effectivity. - This Charter shall take effect when approved by the Board and shall apply
prospectively.
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Annex A
Guidelines in Conducting Performance Assessments

Annual performance assessments of the Board, the individual Directors, the Board
Committees, and the President and CEO and key management officials shall be conducted in
accordance with the following guidelines:

l. For the performance assessment of the Board

The Board shall conduct a self-evaluation where all the board members shall participate. An
outside consultant may be employed to conduct simultaneous evaluation of the Board’s
performance. In evaluating the Board’s performance, the following criteria/factors shall be
considered:

(i) Knowledge — Whether the Board possesses adequate information on industry trends
and overall business envirecnment;

(ii) Strategy and Implementation — Whether the Board has adopted appropriate corporate
strategy and whether the same has been effectively implemented;

(ili)Risk Management — Whether the Board has a keen understanding of the types of risks
to which the Corporation may be exposed and would be vulnerable, and whether it has
adopted appropriate systems and processes to manage these risks;

(iv)Corporate Ethics — Whether the Board has taken the lead role to ensure faithful
compliance with all the applicable laws and rules, and the Corporation's By-laws,
Manual of Corporate Governance, Code of Conduct and Ethics, and other relevant
company policies; and

(v} Infernal Confrol/Oversight Function — Whether the Board has taken reasonable steps to
ensure that the Corporation is properly managed, including monitoring of the operational
and financial results.

ll. For the performance assessment of the Directors

The Board shall assess the performance of its individual members. In evaluating the
performance of each Director, the following criteria/factors shall be considered: .

(i} Knowledge — Whether the Director has an in-depth knowledge of the Corporation’s
business and strategic direction;

(ii} Participation — Whether the Director attended all, some or only a few of the meetings of
the Board and of the committees in which he/she is a member, and whether he/she
made valuable contributions in the discussion of matters before the Board and/or the
committees; and

(iif) Fair Dealing — Whether the Director conducted fair business transactions with the
Corporation and ensured that his/her personal interest did not conflict with the interest
of the Corporation

Ill. For the performance assessment of the Board Committees
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The Board Committees shall assess their respective performance. The Board may conduct

simultaneous evaluation of the performance of each Board Committee. In evaluating the

performance of the Board Committees, the following criteria/factors shall be considered:

(i) Committee Organization — Whether the Committee is composed of appropriate number
of Directors with the right balance of skills, experiences and backgrounds to ensure the
proper performance of the roles and responsibilities of the Committee;

(ii) Committee Meetings — Whether the Committee had adequate number of meetings to
sufficiently focus on significant matters of concern; and

(iii) Committee Processes and Procedures — Whether the Committee adopted processes
and procedures to ensure timely resolution of matters before it.

For the performance assessment of the President and CEO, and other key
management officials

The Board shall assess the performance of the President and CEO, and other key
management officials. In evaluating their performance, the following criteria/factors shall
be considered:

(i) Compliance — Whether the President and CEO, and other key management officials
have taken steps to ensure the Corporation’s compliance with all the legal
requirements in the management of its affairs;

(ii) Administration — Whether the President and CEO, and other key management officials
have effectively managed the day-to-day operations of the Corporation towards the
achievement of the organization’s goals and objectives;

(ifi) Knowledge, Skills and Competence — Whether the President and CEO, and other key
management officials possess appropriate knowledge, skills and competence essential
to the due performance of duties;

(iv) Corporate Ethics — Whether the President and CEO, and other key management
officials have consistently demonstrated integrity and observed the corporate core
values; and

(v) Board-Management Relfationship — Whether the President and CEO, and other key
management officials have worked closely with the Board and provided the latter with
complete, adequate information on the operations and affairs of the Corporation in a
timely manner.



ANNEX 2 of PAXYS [-ACGR

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
PAXYS, INC.

Held on § December 2017
At the 15" Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Philippines

PRESENT:

TARCISIO M. MEDALLA

ROGER LEO A. CARINO

GEORGE Y. SYCIP (Independent Director)

ROBERTO A. ATENDIDO

LIM GHEE KEONG

JOSE ANTONIO A. LICHAUCO (Independent Director)
CHRISTOPHER B. MALDIA

ALSO PRESENT:

MAYETTE H. TAPIA
ANA KATIGBAK
EDMUNDO MACASO
PARBLITO LIM
DIVINE GANDEZA

1. Call to Order

The Chairman, Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla, called the meeting to order at 10:00 am and
presided over the same. The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Mayette H. Tapia, recorded the
proceedings.

2. Certification of Quorum

The Corporate Secretary stated that at least a majority of the directors were present at
the meeting and certified that a quorum was present for the transaction of official
business by the Board. She also announced that the meeting was being recorded for
reference purposes,
3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meetings

The Corporate Secretary announced that the next item on the agenda is the approval
of the minutes of the previous meeting of the Board of Directors held on 6 November
2017 (Review and Approval of the Third Quarter 2017 Financial Performance Report),
Thereafter, upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes of the meeting of the
Board of Directors held on 6 November 2017 was unanimously approved.

4. Approval of the sale of Toyota Fortuner with Plate No. NOF108

After motion duly made and seconded, the Board approved the following

Page 1 of 4
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resolutions:

“RESOLVED, that PAXYS, INC. (the “Corporation™) hereby
approves and ratifies the sale of the following motor vehicle, through the
Deed of Absolute Sale with NGL Pacific Limited-RHQ (“NGL”), a
Corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
Hong Kong, with its Regional Headquarters at 18" Floor 6750 Ayala
Office Tower, Ayala Avenue, Makati City and registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, more particularly described as

follows:
MAKE : 2010 TOYOTA FORTUNER
TYFPE OF BODY : sSUV
ENGINE NUMBER : 1KD7939448
CHASSIS NUMBER : MROYZ59G900094273
PLATE NUMBER : NOF1038

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Corporation approves and ratifies
the authority of the Corporation’s President, Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla, to
sign and execute the Deed of Absolute Sale with NGL and to perforin all
acts as may be necessary to implement the Corporation’s sale of said
motor vehicles.

RESOLVED FINALLY, that the NGL, are hereby authorized to
cause the transfer of the registrations of the above-described motor vehicle
in the name of the Corporation, to represent the Corporation in the
processing of the transfer of registration before the Land Transportation
Office, to submit the necessary documents and to perform any and all acts
as may be necessary to implement the transfer of the registration of said
motor vehicle in name of the Corporation.”

5. Review and Approval of 2018 Budget

The Comorate Secretary announced that the next item on the agenda is the review of
the 2018 Budget for Paxys and its subsdiaries. The highlights of the report were as
follows:

(a) Consolidated Income Statement

— Gross Revenue for 2017 is budgeted at P95.8M. This is about 32% higher than
the 2017 Latest Estimate (LE) of P72.5M. The increase is mainly due to the
anticipated additional velume requirement from SWA Client. The Gross
Revenue also includes P1.4 M disaster recovery service fee for 40 seats starting
the second half of year 2018.

— Given the above projected increase in Revenue, Direct Cost will increase by
P10.8M consisting mainly of additional personnel and premises costs.
Operating Expenses shall be higher by P9.1M versus 2017 yeav-end estimate
due to business development and related activities of the Group.

— Interest Income from surplus funds is budgeted at P70.6M or a slight increase

of 2% from the current year’s estimate of P68.9M. The increase is due to
projected higher
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exchange rates for US dollar (USD} to Philippine peso (P or Peso) used per budget.
— Overall, the projected Net Income Before Tax is at P4.1M or 116% increase versus
2017 latest estimate of P1.9M.

(b) Consolidated Balance Sheet

— The 2018 year-end consolidated Cash and Cash Equivalents is projected at P3.76B.
This is higher by 1% compared to 2017’s year-end estimate mainly due to the
difference in foreign exchange rates vsed.

— Paxys Group surplus funds will be invested in short-term placements and short-
duration bonds. These are projected to generate P70.6M in Interest Income which will
substantially cover the total overhead cost of the Group.

— The USD/Peso exchange rate is budgeted at P51.50 to | USD for 2018 compared with
our latest estimate year-end closing of P50.75 to 1 USD. This results in a Cumulative
Translation Adjustiment in the Other Equity Reserves of P39.5M.

After some discussion, the Board, upon motion duly made and seconded, resolved lo approve
the 2018 Budget for Paxys and its subsidiaries, as reported.

5. Other Matters
Mr. Joey Santos provided updates on the following projects:
{a) Real property projects in Bonifacio Global City and Makati areas that are being reviewed.
{b) Joint venture with Phinma and PHA on developing a mixed-use condominium project at
Southwestern University, which is owned by Phinma,
After some disenssion, the Board noted the updates.

6. Adjournment

There being no further matters to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 12:00 pm.

j' /{h,\b’uv——
MAYETTE H. TATIA

Corporate Secretary

ATTESTED:
TARCISIO M. MEDALLA ROGER LEO A. CARINO
Chaimman Director

GEORGE Y. SYCIP
Independent Direetor

e
JOSE ANTONIO A. LICHHAUCO

Dircctor

OBIERTO A. ATENDIDO
Director
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LIM GHEE KEONG

Director

CHRISTOPHER B. MALDIA
Director
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MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MELETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
PAXYS, INC.

Held on 5 May 2017
At the 15" Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Philippines

PRESENT:
TARCISIO M. MEDALLA
ROGER LEO A. CARINO
GEORGE Y. SYCIP (Independent Director)
ROBERTO A. ATENDIDO
LIM GHEE KEONG
JOSE ANTONIO A. LICHAUCO (Independent Director)
CHRISTOPHER B. MALDIA
SIVAM KANDAVANAM
MARK DAVID P. MARTINEZ

ALSO PRESENT:
ANAMARIA KATIGBAK
EDMUNDO MACASO
PABLITO LIM
DIVINE GANDEZA

1. Callto Order

The Chairman, Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla, called the meeting to order at 11:00 am and presided over
the same, The Corporale Secretary, Atty. Mark David P, Martinez, recorded the proceedings.

2. Certification of Quorum

The Chainman called out the names of all the directors attending the meeting and inquired from the
Corporate Secretary whether a quorum was present. The Corporate Seerelary stated Messrs. Lin Ghee
Keong and Sivam Kandavanam were attending via teleconference from Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, while
Mr. George Sycip was allending via teleconference from the United States. The rest of the directors were
present in person in the boardroom. The Corporate Secretary certified that a majority of the direetors were
in attendance and that a quorum was present for the transaction of offieial business by the Board. e also
announced that the meeting was being recorded for reference purposes.

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meetings

The Corporate Secretary announced that the next item on the agenda is the approval of the minutes of
the previous meeting of the Board of Directors which was held on 20 March 2017 (2016 Audiled
Financial Statements}. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors held on 20 March 2017 was unanimously approved.

4. Review and Approval of First Quarter 2016 Financial Performance Report

The Corporate Secretary announced that the nexf itein on the agenda is the review of the First Quarter
2016 Financial Pcrformance Report for Paxys and its subsdiaries. The highlights of the report were as
follows:

(a) Consoclidated Income Statement

— The Group generated Php20.3 million Revenue for the first quarter for a 21% favorable
variance versus budget mainly due to higher actual volume of SWA business. Direct cost is
likewise slightly higher versus budget at Php15.5 million. Gross Profil of Php4.7 million is
179% better than the budget of only Phpl.7 million.

— Operating Expenses is lower by Phpl.2 million versus budget due to unulilized provision for
advances to affiliate.

~ Qther income of Phpl7.1 million is Phpl.5 million higher than budget due to higher interest
rates obtained for peso placements and net foreign exchange gain. This eovered the overhead
costs of the parent eompany and provided the proup with an overall Net Income of Php3.5
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million which is Php3.6 million higher versus budgeted loss of Phpl.7 million. EBITDA is
positive at Php3.9 million.

{b) Consolidated Balance Sheet

The movement in the Balance Sheet pertains mainly to the following items:

— The decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents is due mainly to the late remittance of paymenl of
the amount due from Nuance

— Accounts Receivable increased by Php22.3 million due to accrued interest receivables of
Paxys and PNV and trade receivables from Nuance

— Other Equity Reserves increased by Php25.4 million composed mainly of the foreign
exchange gain on Paxys NV’s USD finds amounting to about US$50 million

After some discussion, the Board, upon motion duly made and seconded, resolved to approve the
First Quarter 2016 Financial Perforinance Report of Paxys and its subsidiaries, as reported. The Board of
Directors of the Company noted and affinmed that the First Quarter 2016 Financial Performance Report
submilled in ils final fonn shall be a true and fair representation of the Company’s financial condition.

5. Other Matters
A. Operational Updates

Mr. Edmund Macaso provided updates on current operations and M&A initiatives, as follows:
i. SWA’s contract with Nuance is being renewed. SWA is pursuing additional volume from this

account.

ii. Paxys’ is still looking for a qualificd candidate to be the Head of Property Investments.
Discussions with the currenl candidate were not completed.

ili. The prospective deal with the BPO company Assurant was not pursued. Assurani was
considering to lease portions of SWA’s idle space at the Cabuyao facility.

iv. The palm oil business opportunity is still being reviewed.

v. The property development project with Phinma and SWU is still on-going.

These discussions are very preliminary and will require further due diligence review on the legal
and financial tenns of these potential projects. Afier some discussion, the Board took note of the
updates.

The Corporate Secretary infonned the Board of the New Corporate Governance Manual due to be
submilted to the PSE and the SEC by 31 May 2017. The Annual Corporate Governance Report is also
due for submission to the PSE and the SEC by 30 May 2017. The draft Corporate Governance
Manual will be circulated among the directors for their review and approval.

B. Change of authorized bank signatories with Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc.

"RESOLVED, as it is hereby resolved, that PAXYS, INC, (the “Corporation™) be as it is hereby
empowered and authorized to open and mainlain current, savings and/or time deposit account/s with
BANCOQ DE ORO UNIBANK, INC. (the “Bank”) and/or avail itself of the products and services of
the Bank’s Transaction Banking Group (“TBG™) such as without limitation lo, integrated
disbursement services (“IDS”), payment collection services, payroll services, Cash Card scrvices,
electronic banking scrvices, corporate intemet banking (“CIB™) services, and such other existing and
future products and services of TBG (collectively, the “TBG Products/Services™), and be bound in
accordance with and subject to the Bank's rules and regulations, terms and eonditions and/or
agreement(s) to be entered into with the Bank for the use and availment of the TBG
Products/Services;

“RESOLVED, that the following arc the only bank signatorics of the Corporation following (he
proccdure set out below and shall be authorized, as they are hereby authorized, (o enter into the
above-specified arrangements with the Bank under sueh terms and conditions as the said individuals
may deetn necessary and to accordingly exccute, sign, deliver and/or perform any and all contracts,
instruments, documents or writings with or to the Bank that may be necessary for the implementation
of the foregoing transactions.
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Authorized Signalories:

GROUP A

Tarcisio M. Medalla Chief Executive Officer
Roger Leo A. Carifio Direetor

GROUP B

Pablito 0. Lim Executive

Edmundo Miguel D. Macaso  Executive

GROUP C
Divine Grace M. Gandeza Senior Finance Manager
Donna Marie L. Cabrera Senior Aecountant

Signing Limits (in Philippine Pesos and/or in Foreign Cwrrency equivalent)

a. If the amount involved is up to Three Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00} or its
foreign eurrency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rale on the (ransaclion date, any
two (2) signatories signing jointly from Groups A, B or C shall have the power and authority
to effeet the transaction or sign the relevant instruments;

b. If the amount involved exeeeds Three Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00) or its
foreign currency equivalent based on the prevailing exehange raie on Lhe transaction date, the
following signing jointly shall have the power and authority to effect the transaction or sign
the relevant instruments;

i. any wo (2) signatories consisting of any one (1) fromn Group A and any one (1} from
Group B; or
il. any two (2) signatories from Group A;

c. For payroll dishursement, regardless of amount, any two (2} of the signatories signing jointly
fromn Groups A, B or C shall have the power and authority to effect the transaction or sign the
relevant mstruments,

The foregoing authorized signatories {“the Representative/s™), be as he/she/they are herchby
cmpowered and authorized Lo do the following acts on behalf of the Corporation with full power of
substitulion:

1. Open, maintain and manage in the name of the Corporation, current, savings and/or time
deposit account/s (Philippine Peso and/or foreign currency) with any Branch/es of the Bank (the
“Depository Account/s™;

2. Deposit to and withdraw from the Deposilory Account/s, in whatever form and mnanner, and in
sueh amount as the Representalive/s shall, in his/her/their sole discretion, deem appropriate or
necessary;

3. Close the Depository Account/s and ask, demand, colleet, or receive the proceeds thereof in
the name of the Corporation;

4. Reeeive, accept, endorse and negotiate all cheeks, drafts, or orders of payment payable to the
Corporation or its order which may require the Corporation’s endorsement;

5. Execute, sign, deliver, and perform for and on behalf of the Corporation, the documents,
instruments, agreements, acts and/or deeds, which may be necessary or required in counection
with the use and availment of the TBG Products/Services, under such terms and eonditions as the
Representative/s may deem fit, ineluding enyollment forms, notices, instructions, debil
authorizations, and/or designation of email addresses authorized to transmit files and/or
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instructions, that may be required or permitted under the tenns of such documents, instruments,
agreements, acts and/or deeds;

6. For CIB, enroll, dis-enroll, re-enroll Depository Account/s in CIB; name, designate, enroll
Company System Administrator authorized to do and perfornm acts allowed under the BDO terms
and condilions govemning CIB; dis-enrcll and/or re-enroll Company System Administrator
in/from CIB; enroll, dis-enroll and/or re-enroll merchant/subscriber and/or third party accounts in
CIB for bills/other payment purposes; enroll Users in the CIB Facility, with authority to exercise
and perfornn access rights with respect to the enrolled Depository Account/s as may be allowed
under the BDO terms and conditions governing CIB. For CIB, to designate lhe respective roles of
Users in CIB Facility (Maker, Approver, and/or Verifier), and the acts/transactions which the
Users are authorized to do or perform under CIB;

7. Give consent to or allow the enrollment, use, and aggregation of the Corporation's accounts
wilh the Bank for purposes of compliance by its related company/ies with any average daily
balance requirement (ADB) of the Bank, subject to existing policies of the Bank on ADB
compliance requirement;

8. Give consent to or allow the enroilment and use of the Corporation's account/s with the Bank
to serve as debit account/s to fund the needs/requirements of its related company/ies, subject to
existing policies of the Bank;

9. Give consent to or allow the enrollment of the Corporation's related company/ies for electronie
banking subject to existing policies of the Bank thereon; and

10. Exeeule, deliver, perform any and all acts, doecuments, instruments as may be neecessary or
required to give full foree and effeet to the foregoing authorized acts,

“RESQOLVED, that the Corporation hereby ratifies and confirms all that the Representative/s or

his/her/their substitute/s may lawlally do or cause to be done under and by virtue of lhese presents;

“RESQOLVED, FURTHER, that the foregoing resolutions shall remain valid and subsisting

unless otherwise revoked or amended in writing by the Comoration, duly served upon the Bank; and

“RESOLVED FINALLY, that any one of the Representatives or the Corporation’s Corporate

Secretary is hereby empowered and authorized to advise the Bank of these resolutions.”
C. Change of anthorized bank signatories with Bank of the Philippine Islands

“RESOLVED, that PAXYS, INC. (the “Corporation™) be authorized, as il is hereby
authorized, to enter into transactions and/or avail of products or facilities of, or brokered by, or
through the intermediation of the BANK QOF THE PHILIPPINE ISLANDS, or any of its
branehes, affiliates, and wholly/partly owned subsidiaries (hereinafter individually or eollectively
referred 1o as “BPI” for the purpose of these resolutions), including but not limited to, deposit
accounts {including phone/electronic/internet banking facilities, cash management services, and
similar transaetions as the Corporation may deem reasonable, beneficial and in the furtherance of
the interest of the Corporation;

RESOLVED, that the following officers or directors of the Corporation be, as they are
hereby, authorized to sign, for and in behalf of the Corporation any documents, papers,
instruments, ehecks and withdrawal slips, debit and credit instructions, funds transfer instructions,
check encashment/endorsement, forms agreements, or contracts as may be appropriate and/or
required for the implemenlation of the foregoing powers/transactions, authorized above;

Awuthorized Signatories:

GROUP A
Tarcisio M. Medalla Chief Executive Officer
Roger Leo A. Carifio Direclor
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GROUP B
Pablito O. Lim Execulive

Edmundo Miguel D. Macaso  Executive

GROUP C
Divine Grace M. Gandeza Senior Finance Manager
Donna Maric L, Cabrera Senior Accountant

Signing Liniits (in Philippine Pesos and/or in Foreign Currency equivalent)

a. If the amount involved is up to Three Million Philippine Pesos {Php3,000,000.00) or
its foreign currency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rate on the
transaction date, any two (2) signatories signing jointly from Groups A, B or C shall
have the power and authority to effect the iransaction or sign the relevant
instruments;

b, Il the amount involved excceds Three Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00) or
its foreign currency cquivalent based on the prevailing exchange rale on the
transaction date, the following signing jointly shall have the power and authorily to
cffect the transaction or sign the relevant instruments:

i. any two (2) signatories consisting of any one (1) from Group A and any one (1)
from Group B; or
ii. any two (2) signatories from Group A;

c. PFor payroll disbursement, rcgardless of amount, any two (2) of the signalorics
signing jointly from Groups A, B or C shall have the power and authority to ctfect
the transaction or sign the relevant instrumenis,

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Corporate Scerelary of the Corporation be authorized, as he is
hereby authorized, to submit the updated list of the incumbent officers/directors occupying the above-
mentioned positions, from time to time.

RESOLVED FINALLY, that the foregoing resolutions shall remain valid, subsisting and
enforceable unless subsequently modified, revoked, reseinded or superseded by a resolution of the
Board of Directors and a copy of such resolution is actually rececived by BPL™

D. Change of authorized bank signatories with Metrobank Card Corporation

“RESOLVED, that PAXYS, INC. {the “Corporation™) be authorized, as it is hereby authorized,
(i) 0 open and maintain money markel placement accounts with METROBANK CARD
CORPORATION (A FINANCE COMPANY) (the “Bank™); (i) to invest in Retail Promissory
Notes or deposit substitule instruments issucd by the Bank; (iii) to rencw and terminate such
investments and (iv} do all acts relaled thereto in accordance with the terms and conditions of such
investments, in cither case signed by the following authorized signatories with signing limits:

Awthorized Signatories.

GROUP A

Tarcisio M. Medalla Chicfl Executive Officer
Roger Leo A. Carifio Director

Lim Ghee Keong Director

Sivam Kandavanam Dircctor

GROUP B

Pablilo O. Lim Exccutive

Edmundo Miguel D, Macaso  Executive
Divine Grace M. Gandeza Senior Finance Manager
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Signing Limits (in Philippine Pesos and/or in Foreign Currency equivalent)

a. If the amount involved is up to Three Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00} or
its foreign currency equivalenlt based on the prevailing exchange rate on the
transaction date, any lwo (2) signatories consisting of one (1) signatory from Group
A and any one (1) signatory from Group B, signing jointly, shall have the power and
authority to effect the transaction or sign the relevant instruments;

b. If the amount involved is up to Five Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00) or
its foreign eurrency equivalent based on the prevailing exehange rate on lhe
transaction date, any two (2) signatories from Group A signing jointly shall have the
power and authority to effect the transaetion or sign the relevant instruments;

c. If the amount involved exceeds Five Million Philippine Pesos (Plp5,000,000.00) or
its foreign currency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rale on the
transaction date, any three (3) signatorics from Group A signing jointly shall have the
power and authority to effect the {ransaction or sign the relevant insiruments; and

d. For shori-term investments, regardless of amount, any {wo (2) signatories {rom
Group A and/or Group B signing jointly shall have the power and authority lo effect
the transaction or sign the relevant instruments.

be empowered, as they are hereby empowered and authorized to sign, execute and deliver any and all
documents necessary to effect the foregoing resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary cerlifies
the incumbent officers so designated as well as their respective specimen signature/s,

RESOLVED, FINALLY, that the foregoing resolutions shall remain valid and subsisting until a
notice in writing shall be received of the revocation, termination or amendment of the resolutions
herein”.

E. Change of authorized bank signatories with Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
{a) Opening/Maintaining of Bank Accounts with Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company

“RESOLVED, that METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY (hereinafier called
“Metrobank™) be, and is hereby, designated a depository of the funds/monies of the Corporation and
that the Corporation be, and is hereby, authorized (o open savings, time, current and/or trust accounts
with Metrobank, Head Office, and/or any of ils branches.

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the following officers and directors of the Corporation be, as
they are hereby, authorized (i) to sign, execute and/or deliver any and all documents in connection
with the opening of any account(s) with or investmen! of any funds through Metrobank; (i) to
withdraw or transfer the funds/monies of the Corporation by checks, receipts, drafts, bills of
exchange, withdrawal slips, orders for payment or otherwise, (iii) to sign, endorse, draw, aceept,
make, execute and/or deliver, for negotiation, payment, deposit or collection, checks, receipts, drafts,
bills of exchange, orders for payment and/or other similar instruinents in conneciion with the
accounl(s), (iv) to close the account(s), receive the balance(s) thereof and sign any and all documents
which Metrobank may require in conneetion therewith, and (v) to avail of all other banking services,
apply for and enroll in electronic banking channels and appoint its authorized users:

Authorized Signatories:

GROUP A

Tarcisio M. Mcdalla Chief Executive Officer
Roger Leo A. Carifio Director

Lim Ghee Keong Director

Sivam Kandavanam Director

GROUFP B

Pablito O. Lim Execulive

Edmundo Miguel D. Macaso Executive

Divine Grace M. Gandeza Senior Finance Manager

Pages of 10



™
My ANNEX 3 of PAXYS I-ACGR

Signing Limits {in Philippine Pesos and/or in Foreign Currency equivalent)

i. If the amount involved is up to Three Million Philippine Pesos (Php3,000,000.00) or
its foreign currency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rale on the
transaetion date, any one (1) signatory from Group A and any one (1) signatory from
Group B both signing jointly, shall have the power and authority to effect the
transaction or sign the relevant instruments;

ii. If the amount involved is up to Five Million Philippine Pesos (Php5,000,000.00) or
its foreign curreney equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rate on the
transaction date, any two (2) signatories from Group A both signing jointly shall
have the power and authority to effect the transaction or sign the relevant
instruments;

Hi. If the amount involved exeeeds Five Million Philippine Pesos (Php5,000,000.00) or
its foreisn currency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange rate on the
transaction date, any three (3) signatories fron1 Group A all signing jointly shall have
the power and authorily to effeet the transaction or sign the relevant instruments; and

iv. For short-term investinents, regardless of amount, any two {2) signatories fromn
Group A. both signing jointly, or any two (2) signatories from Group B both signing
jointly, shall have the power and authority to effeet the fransaction or sign the
relevant instruments,

RESOLVED, FURTHERMORE, that Melrobank, its directors, offieers, employees, agents or
authorized representatives are cach entitled and authorized to rely on these instruetions as valid,
binding, and effeetive upon the Corporation and that Metrobank, its directors, officers, emnployees,
agents or authorized representatives shall not be liable for any aet done or suffered by them in
reliance of the above instructions, it being understood that any and all risks and costs arising from the
above instructions shall be for Corporation’s sole and exclusive account.

RESOLVED, FINALLY, that all things/acls done and documents exeeuted and entered into by
the aforeinentioned signatories pursuant to and in accordance with the foregoing authorities are
hereby confirmed, affirmed and ratified. Likewise all things/acts done and documents executed and
enlered inlo prior to this Resolution are hereby affirmed, confirmed and ratified.

{b) Entering into Loan Agreements with Metrobank

RESOLVED, that the Corporation be, as it is liereby authorized io borrow {rom and/or enter into
loans/credit aceommadations and trust receipt agreements with Metrobank, Head Office and/or any of
its branches under such terms and eonditions as may be imposed by Metrobank;

RESOLYED, FURTHER, (hat the following officers and directors of the Corporation be, as
they are hereby, authorized In paragraph (a) to sign, exeeute and/or deliver applications for
loan/credit accommodations, credit line/loan agreements, promissory notes, drafis, letters of eredit,
trust receipts, indemnity agreements, undertakings, and any all documents/agreements in conneetion
therewith, including the amendments, renewals or extensions thercof; (i) to diseonnt and/or
negotiate checks, drafis and/or commercial papers/instruinents; and (iii) to assign, transfer, pledge,
mortgage and/ or encumber the Corporation’s savings/current/time/trust accounts, shares of stoeks,
bonds, securities, real or personal properties, rights and/or other assets as security for the above
mentioned loans/credit accommodations and to sign, execule and/or deliver the corresponding deeds
of assignment, real estate mortgages, chattel mortgages, pledge agreements, and sueh olher
document/agreements/deeds related or connected therewith; and (iv) to sign, execute and/or deliver
debt restructuring agreeinents, assignments of properties {real and personal) in paymnent of the
loans/eredit accommodations (“Dacion en Pago™) and all other doeunients/agreemenis/deeds for the
settlement/payment of the loans/credit aceommodations of the Corporation with Metrobank.

RESOLVED, FURTHERMORE, that Metrobank, its directors, officers, employees, agents or
authorized representatives are each entitled and authorized to rely on these instructions as valid,
binding, and effective upon the Corporation and that Mectrobank, its directors, officers, employees,
agents or authorized representative shall not be liable for any act done or suffered by them in reliance
of the above inslructions, it being understood that any and all risks and costs arising from the above
instructions shall be for the Corporation’s sole and exclusive aecount.
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RESOLVED, FINALLY, thal all things/acts done and documents executed and entered into by
the aforementioned signatories pursuant to and in accordance with the foregoing authorities are
hereby confirmed, affirmed and ratified. Likewise all things/acts done and documents exccuted and
entered into prior Lo this Resolution are hereby affirmed, confirmed and ratified”.

F. Change of authorized bank signatories with Securily Bank Corporation

“RESOLVED, that PAXYS, INC. (lhe “Corporation™) be authorized, as it is hereby authorized,
to open/maintain bank aecount(s) with SECURITY BANK CORPORATION, in the name and for
the use of the Corporation; that all moneys, checks, or other funds of the Corporation be deposiled in
said Security Bank Corporation and that uniil othenvise ordered, said bank be and it hereby is
authorized 1o make payments from the funds of the Corporation and deposil with it upon and
according to the check of the Comoration, or allow withdrawal of funds therefrom in case of savings
accounts by way of withdrawal slips, in cither case signed by the following authorized signatories
with signing limits:

Authorized Signatoriex:

GROUP A

Tarcisio M. Medalla Chief Executive Officer
Roger Leo A. Carifio Director

Lim Ghee Keong Director

Sivam Kandavanam Director

GROUP B

Pablito O. Lim Executive

Edmundo Miguel D. Macaso  Executive

Divine Grace M. Gandeza Senior Finance Manager

Signing Limits (in Phifippine Pesox and/or in Foreign Currency eguivalent)

a. If the amount involved is up 1o Three Million Philippinc Pesos (Php3,000,000.00) or
its foreign cwrency equivalent bascd on the prevailing exchange rate on the
iransaction date, any two (2) signatories consisting of any one (1) signatory from
Group A and any one (1) signatory {rom Group B, signing joinily, shall have the
power and authorily to effect (he transaction or sign the relevant instruments;

b If the amount involved is up to Five Million Philippine Pesos (Php3.000.000.00) or
its foreign currency equivalent based on the prevailing exchange ratc on the
transaction dale, any two (2) signatories from Group A signing jointly shall have the
power and authority to effect the transaction or sign the relcvant instruments;

c. I the amount involved exceeds Five Million Philippine Pesos (Php5,000,000.00) or
its foreign currency equivalent bascd on the prevailing exchange rate on the
{ransaction date, any three (3} signatories from Group A sizning jointly shall have the
power and authority 1o effect the transactlion or sign the relevant instruments; and

d. For short-termi investments, regardless of amounl, any (wo (2) signalories from
Group A and/or Group B signing jointly shall have the power and authority to elfect
the transaction or sign the relevant instraments.

that said bank is authorized to receive [or deposit or collection any ilems purporting Lo be endorsed in
the name of the Corporation; that all such checks, drafis, notes, or other negotiable papers endorscd lo
or signed by the Corporation, as aforcsaid, ineluding checks drawn to cash or bearer or (o the
individual order of any officer of the Comoration, shall be honored and paid by said bank without
inquiry as to whether the same be drawn or required {or the Corporation’s business or benelit; and all
such payments shall be charged o the Corporation’s account; that the above-mentioned signatory/ies
be authorized as authority is hereby given to designate or further authorize a representalive (o reeeive
the proceeds of funds withdrawn from the Corporation’s account; hereby rarifying and approving all
that said bank may do or cause 10 be done by virtue hereof.

“RESOLVED, that the above-mentioned signatoryfies be authorized as authorily is hereby given
to effect fund transfers and/or enroll the corporate bank account(s) in Fund Transfer Facilities (Aulp
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Sweep, Check Protector, Maximizer and Scheduler) of Security Bank Corporalion; to apply for and
obtain from Securily Bank Corporalion, in the name of the Corporation, any of its banking services
such as Digibankemm Telebanker and Mobilebanker Products, and other services such as, but not
limited to, Deposit Pick Up, Cash Delivery, Payroll and Bills Payment Serviees, under such terins and
conditions as are or may be requircd by Security Bank Corporation; 1o apply for, invest in and/or
obtain from Security Bank Corporation any of its Treasury Producls such as, but net mited 1o, Fixed
Income Sceurity, Money Market, Foreign Exchange, and Derivatives (hercinafter referred to as
banking/treasury transactions) in the name of the Corporation, subject o such terms and conditions
and collateral agreements, if any, as ar¢ or may be required by Security Bank Corporation;

“RESOLVED, further that said signatory/ies be authorized, as authority is hereby given, 1o
renew, roll-over, amend, revise, converl or substitufe as may be necessary and/or applicable, the
above-mentioned deposits, placements, investments, banking/treasury transactions and other banking
services, abtained from Securily Bank Corporatiou;

“RESOLVED, further (hat said signatory/ies be authorized, as authority is hereby given, lo
execule, sign and deliver any and all such agreements, contracts and other documents as are or may
be necessary 1o implement the foregoing authorities;

"RESOLVED, further that the foregoing authorized signatories wilth their respective signing
limits be authorized as authorily is hereby given, lo apply for and obtain from Security Bank
Corporation, [rom fime to time and in the name ol the Corporation, loans and other credit
accommodations whether on line or non-line arrangement in such amount and under such terms and
conditions and collateral arrangements as are or may be required by Securily Bank Corporation: lo
pledge, morlgage, assign or otherwise hypothecale any assel of the Corporalion as are or may be
required Lherefor, including the execulion of guarantecs of suretyship: to make availments therefrom
for such amounls as said signatories may deem beneficial to the Corporation. even if in excess ol the
amounl ¢f the original lne granted 1o it by Security Bank Corporation; and (¢ execute, sign and
deliver any and all such credil and collateral agreements, Proimissory Noles, drafis, import documents,
Lelters of Credit, Trust Receipts and the like as are or may be necessary for and in connection
therewilh,

“RESOLVED, further that said signatory/ies be authorized, as authority is also hereby given, to
negoliate, from time lo lime. for the renewals, extension, amendments. revisions, resiruciuring,
canversiens and/or substilutions of such loans and other credit accommodations; and

“RESOLVED, further that the said signatory/ies be authorized, as authority is hereby given, to
apply, oblain and sign any and all docuinents necessary for availing from Securily Bank Corporation,
in the name of the Corporalion, the services of Securily Bank Digibanker and all its related
modules/function, lo include but not limited (o account balance viewing, fund transfers, payroll, auto
credil payments, auio debit payments, check cutting. The lollowing officers of the Corporation are
assigned as the Access & Password Adiministrator for Securily Digibanker;

Acccss Administrator: Pablito O. Lim / Executive

Password Administrator: Divine Grace M. Gandeza / Senior Finance Manager

As the Access & Password Administrator, they are hereby authorized to assign Users who may
have access to the Securily Digibanker and Lheir corresponding access levels.

“FINALLY RESOLVED, that the loregoing resolutions shall continue and remain in full force
and effect until repealed and/or amended by subsequent resolutions of the Beard of Directors and
appropriate copies therect served upon ang received by Lhe Security Bank Corporation.™

Adjournment

There being no further matters e discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 12:00 pm.

‘elary J’/
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ATTESTED:

TARCISIO M. MEDALLA
Chairman

ANNEX 3 of PAXYS I-ACGR

I

ROGER LEO A. CARINO
Director .

GEGREE Y. SYCIP
Independent Director

vl —
OSE ANTONIO A. LICHAUCO
Independent Director

—

ROBERTO A. ATENDIDO
Directlor

LIM GHEE KEONG
Direclor

WrR /P e

CHRISTOPHER B. MALDIA
Direclor

SIVAM KANDAVANAM
Direclor
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PAXYS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

. OBJECTIVES

This policy is intended to:

Ensure that every Related Party Transaction is conducted in a manner that will protect the
Company from conflict of interest, which may arise between the Company and Related
Parties.

Ensure the proper review, approval, ratification, and disclosure of transactions between
the Company and any of its Related Party/ies as required in compliance with the legal and
regulatory reguirements.

Il. DEFINITION

For the purpose of this policy, a Related Party means

A Stockholder owning 1% or more of the total equity of the Company (“Stockholder”) (other
than financial or investment institutions under PCD Nominee Corporation whose beneficial
owners could not he readily determined by the Company as it is being traded actively in
the market);

A Director of the Company, and its subsidiary (*Director”),

A Senior Officer of the Company {AVP up) (“Senior Officer”);

Immediate family members of a Stockholder, Director or Senior Officer up to the second
degree of affinity or consanguinity;

Entities in the group owned directly or indirectly by parent company and/or its
subsidiaries/affiliates including special purpose entities or those that exert control over the
Company; or

Entities in which a Stockholder, Director, or Senior Qfficer majority owns or controls.

In the context of this policy, the following criteria apply to a Related Party Transaction

Materiality

A transaction with a Related Party shall be considered material if the transaction/s to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial
year, exceeds 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per its last
audited financial statement.
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» Nature
Any of the following transactions entered into by the Company with a Related Party which
includes:
a, Finance (including credit accommodations and equity contributions in cash or in
kind);
b. Purchases, sales, or supply of good or materials;
¢. Rendering or receiving services;
d. Agency agreements;
e. Outsourcing arrangements;
f. Leasing of propery of any kind;
g. License agreements;
h. Selling or disposing of, or buying of property of any kind;
i. Guarantees and sureties; and
i. Management contracts.

¢ Circumstances
The Company or its subsidiary is a participant to a Related Party Transaction in which a
Related Party has the ability to control or to exercise significant influence in the outcome
of a proposed Related Party Transactions such as a Senior Officer with discretion and can
influence decisions solely.

Ill. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

1. The Audit, Risk, and Related Party Transaction Committee

1.1 All the transactions which are identified as Related Party Transactions should be pre-
approved by the Committee before the Company enters into such transactions. The Committee
shall consider all relevant factors while deliberating the Related Party Transaction for its approval.

1.2 Any member of the Committee who has a potential interest in any Related Party
Transaction while rescue himself and abstain from discussion and voting on the approval of the
Related Party Transaction. A Related Party Transaction which is (i) not in the ordinary course of
business, or (ii) not at arm's length price, would require approval of the Board of Directors or of
shareholders as discussed subseqguently.

1.3 The Committee may grant omnibus approval for Related Party Transaction which are
repetitive in nature and subject to such conditions as the Committee may consider necessary in
line with this policy and in the interest of the Company. Such omnibus approval shall be valid for
a pericd not exceeding one year and shall require fresh approval after the expiry of one year.

14 The Committee shall review, on a quarterly basis, the details of Related Party
Transactions entered into by the Company pursuant to the omnibus approval. In connection with
any review of a Related Party Transaction, the Committee has authority to rmodify or waive any
procedural reguirements of this policy.
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1.5 A Related Party Transaction entered into by the Company, which is not under the omnibus
approval or otherwise pre-approved by the Committee, will be placed before the Committee for
ratification.

2. Board of Directors

In case any Related Party Transaction are referred by the Company to the Board for its approval
due to the transaction being (i) not in the ordinary course of the business, or (ii) not at arm’s length
price, the Board will consider such factors as nature of the transaction, material terms, the manner
of determining the pricing and the husiness rationale for entering into such transaction. On such
consideration, the Board may approve the transaction or may require such modifications to
transaction terms as it deems appropriate under the circumstances. Any member of the Board
who has any interest in any Related Party Transaction shall rescue himself and abstain from
discussion and voting on the approval of the Related Party Transaction.

3. Shareholders

If a Related Pariy Transaction is (i) a material transaction as per the Philippine regulations or (ii)
not in the ordinary course of business, or not at arm’s length price and exceeds certain thresholds
as may be imposed by the SEC, it shall require shareholders’ approval by special resolution. In
such case, any shareholder of the Company who is a Related Party shall not vote on a resolution
passed for approving such Related Party Transaction.

IV. REPORTING OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

« Every contract or arrangement, which is required to be approved by the
Board/shareholders under this policy, shall be referred to in the Board's report to the
shareholders with the justification for entering into such contract or arrangement.

« The Company shall also disclose in its website this policy as well as in the Annual
Corporate Govemance Report to the SEC and PSE.

» Material Related Transactions shall be reporied to the regulatory agencies as required
and shall be ratified and approved by the stockholders in the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.

» Necessary disclosures shall be made in the Notes to the Financial Statements of the
Annual Report.

V., LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMENTS

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this policy and the rules or the applicable
laws provided by the regulatory agencies, the provisions of the latter shall prevail over this policy.
Any subsequent amendment or modification in the he rules or the applicable laws in this regard
shall automatically apply to this policy.



P AXYS ANNEX 5 of PAXYS I-ACGR

Annual Board Assessment Form (Board)

This Self-Assessment Questionnaire is composed of varying statements based on the roles, functions
and responsibilities of the Board and Board Members found under the Company's Manual on
Corporate Governance. For each statement, you will be asked to choose from among the following
responses:

1- Disagree
2- Neutral
3- Agree

Please be forthright in your responses. This questionnaire aims to determine the Board's strengths
and weaknesses. Thank you.

PERFORMANGCE OF INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBERS:

I. Company Policies

1 The Board effectively represents and protects the interests of the
owners of the business, as well as other key external stakeholders.
2 The Board ensures effective business governance of the various

businesses in which the Company has an interest, with the objective
of preserving stakeholder value in the long run.

3 The Board ensures that key financial decisions made related to
investments/capital expenditures are governed by appropriate
processes and with proper Board approval.

4 The Board ensures that the strategic business direction of the
businesses of the Company is scundly established, and consistent
with overall Company goals and strategies.

5 The Board sets performance measures for the business of the
Executive Management, and specific performance measures of the
CEOQ to determine his effectiveness in the role.

6 The Board ensures that appropriate compensation policies are in
place, and that the compensation received by senior managers are at
an appropriate level related to his/her contribution to the Company.

7 The Board receives reports on progress related to the execution of
strategic plans, financial performance of the business, and other
matters related to the role and responsibilities of the Board from the
Executive Management.

7.1 The Board has sufficient opportunity to evaluate such reports,
and question the Executive Management on any matter of concern or

clarification.

8 If needed, the Board determines what are the additional hoard
committees that should be establish, as well as their roles and
composition.

9 The Board has consistent understanding on and agrees with the

Company's strategic business direction and the risks that should be
considered therewith,
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ll. The Board and the Executive Management

1 The Board works in close cooperation with the Executive Management |
to effectively communicate the Company’s strategic business direction,
as well as to discuss the progress of the projects.

2 The Board communicates to the Executive Management any perceived
stakeholder concerns.
3 The Board takes a direct interest in leadership succession, for the

Company CEO and other key group senior management positions in
particular, to ensure that appropriate processes are being effectively
adopted to avoid some leadership gaps.

4 The Board and Executive Management have reached consensus on
the overall risk management framework and strategy for the
organization.

5 When communicating strategic direction, the Board and Executive
Management includes formal references to defined risk appetite and
tolerances.

lll. Board Meetings and Facilities

1 The Board meets on a regular hasis to deliberate, with special
emergency meetings held whenever required.

2 The Board facilitates the conduct of Annual General Meetings, and any
other special shareholder meetings that may be required.

3 The Agenda for the Board meetings are relevant and appropriate

4 The length of the Board meeting is sufficient to address matters that
require Board attention.

5 The quality of the presentations and/or reports are very satisfactory in
form and in substance.

6 The reporters are competent, articulate, clear, concise, and are
responsive to gueries from the Board.

7 The materials are organized, updated, concise, and accurate.

8 The materials were furnished to the Board before the scheduled Board
meeting, giving the members of the Board sufficient time to read the
materials.

9 The venue for the Board meeting is sufficient for the size and needs of

the Board and well equipped with video and teleconferencing facilities.

V. Board Composition

The size of the Board is appropriate for the size of the Company.

The number of Independent Directors is sufficient.

There is a system of ensuring continuity of the functions of the Board.

BN —

The members of the Board are very competent and are fully cognizant
of their functions,

V. Board Committees

1 The number and kinds of committees are appropriate considering the
size and needs of the Company.
2 The members of the committees are properly assigned based on their

expertise and strengths.

3 The frequency, length, and agenda discussed during committee
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meetings are satisfactory.

Qverall, | am very satisfied with the effectiveness and performance of
the Board.

Others

For the next five (5) years, the Board should concentrate on the following issues?

The performance of the Board can be improved by instituting the following
Mmeasures:

Comments
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Annual Board Assessment Form (Member)

This Self-Assessment Questionnaire is composed of varying statements based on the roles,
functicns, and responsibilities of the Board and Board Members found under the Company's Manual
on Corporate Governance. For each statement, you will be asked to choose from among the following
responses:

1- Disagree
2- Neutral
3- Agree

Please be forthright in your responses. This questicnnaire aims to determine the Board's strengths
and weaknesses.

| PERFORMANGE OF INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBERS ' il ]

I. Company Policies

1 | take time to understand the Company and its subsidiaries, its goals
and strategies, its businesses, its governance, and other key policies.

2 | represent the Company pasitively and constructively in all external
dealings, seeking to enhance the Company name and reputation.

ll. Attendance and Participation

1 | regularly attend Board and/or Committee meetings.

2 | contribute effectively to discussions during Board and Committee
meetings.

3 I willingly offer alternative viewpoints during discussions to reflect own
personal experiences and opinions.

4 | offer any viewpoints objectively, avoiding any comments of a personal
nature about another member of the Board or his/her viewpoins.

5 | listen to the viewpoints of other Board members with full respect and
with care, in order o achieve optimal understanding.

6 | fully support decisions made by the Board in the external arena, even
if that decision did not completely reflect my own viewpoints.

lll. Performance
1 | seek to find ways to continuously improve the efficiency and

effectiveness of the Board or any committee that | am a member of,
taking any relevant suggestions to the Board Chairman or Committee
Chairman, as the case maybe, for his consideration.

2 | am prepared to receive and act upon any feedback received through
the

Board or Committee Chairman on ways to improve performance as a
Board Director or Committee member.

3 | maintain complete external confidentiality on details of Board
discussions, individual viewpecints and any matters of sensitivity, other
than as the Board agrees is fo be communicated in a specific manner.

4 | always exercise independent judgment based on my assessments of
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the situation or problem, even if my position is unpopular.

5 | strive to keep myself informed of industry developments and business
trends affecting the businesses of the Company.

For the succeeding questions, please answer those which are applicable to you.

A. For Executive Directors only

| maintain a primary identity as a Board member, while dealing with
Board matters, at the same time bringing to the Board the benefit of
closer knowledge of operational considerations.

B. For Independent Directors only

I bring fully to the Beoard the benefit of the particular experience or
expertise that encouraged the invitation to become a Board member, at
the same time not feeling constrained to contribute on matters that may
be outside my personal experience and expertise.

C. For Board Committee members only

1 | am familiar of the mandate of the committee that | am a member of.

2 I am familiar with specific areas of concern covered by the committee
that | am a member of, and do not seek to divert into other areas not
specifically envisioned by the committee mandate.

3 | engage constructively with the Company CEO and any other senior
leader of the Company, who may be consulted for the purpose of the
Committee heing better informed, or better positioned to offer the Board
a more reliable recommendation.

4 I maintain external confidentiality related to details of Committee
discussion, including the individual views of members, other than as
agreed for formal communication to the Board and/or Executive
Management by the Committee as a whole.

D. For Board Committee Chairmen only

1 | oversee the conduct of the Beoard Commiftee in line with the
Committee mandate including:

2 | manage the agenda of Committee meetings by taking info
consideraticn the relevant and appropriate issues concerning the
Committee.

3 | effectively chair Committee meetings, ensuring proper consideration
of matters for discussion and recommendation to the full Board.

4 | ensure that each member of the Committee has full opportunity to
express views and contribute effectively to discussion.

5 | draw the attention of a Committee member who, for cne reason or

another, is not contributing to discussion and recommendations as
effectively as he/she could.

6 [ bring the attention of the Board Chairman to any situation where, for
one reason or another, a Committee member is failing consistently to
honer responsibilities as a Committee member.

7 | ensure that appropriate record of Committee deliberations and
conclusions are maintained.

8 | lead and facilitate the Committee in reporting back to the Chairman of
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the Board, or to the whole Board, considerations and recommendations
on any matter, including both majority conclusions and

recommendations, as well as minority conclusions and
recommendations.

What do you think was your best contribution to the Board this year?

What are your suggestions to improve the performance of the Board?

Remarks
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PAXYS

Internal Audit Department Charter

MISSION AND SCOPE OF WORK

The mission of the internal audit department is to provide independent, objective
assurance and consulting services designed to add value and improve operaticnal
efficiency. 1t helps the organization accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control, and governance processes,

The scope of work of the internal audit department is to determine whether the
organization’s network of risk management, control, and governance processes, as
designed and represented by management, is adequate and functioning in a
manner to ensure:

= Risks are appropriately identified and managed, including technology

risks.

» Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate,
reliable, and timely.

« Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures,
and applicable laws and regulations.

» Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and adequately
protected.

« Programs, plans, and objectives are achieved.

« Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the organization’s
control process.

« Significant legislative or regulatory issues impacting the organization are
recognized and addressed appropriately.

Opportunities for improving management control, profitability, and the
organization’s image may be identified during audits. They will be communicated to
the appropriate level of management.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Chief Audit Executive, in the discharge of his/her duties, shall be accountable to
the Board through the Board Audit Committee, to:
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« Provide annually an assessment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organization’s processes for controlling its activities and managing its risks in
the areas set forth under the mission and scope of work.

« Report significant issues related to the processes for controlling the activities
of the organization and its affiliates, including potential improvements to
those processes, and provide information concerning resolution of such
issues,

« Periodically provide information on the status and results of the annual audit
plan and the sufficiency of department resources.

« Coordinate with the other control and monitoring functions (risk
management, security, legal, external audit).

« Report significant governance issues

INDEPENDENCE

To provide for the independence of the Internal Audit Department, its personnel
report to the Chief Audit Executive, who reports functionally to the Board Audit
Committee and administratively toc the Chairman, in a manner outlined in the
above section on Accountability. It will include as part of its reports to the audit
committee a regular report on internal audit personnel.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Chief Audit Executive and staff of the Internal Audit Department have
responsibility to:

e Develop a flexible annual audit plan using an appropriate risk-based
methodology, including any risks or control concerns identified by
management, and submit that plan to the audit committee for review and
approval as well as periodic updates.

o Implement the annual audit plan, as approved, including as appropriate any
special tasks or projects requested by management and/or the audit
committee,

+ Maintain a professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills,
experience, and professional certifications to meet the requirements of this
Charter.

« Evaluate and assess significant merging/consolidating functions and new or
changing services, processes, operations, and control processes coincident
with their development, implementation, and/or expansion.

« Issue bi-monthly reports to the Chairman and quarterly reports to the Audit
Committee summarizing results of audit activities.

s [Keep the Audit Committee informed of emerging trends and successful
practices in internal auditing.

2of4d
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Provide a list of significant measurement goals and results to the audit
committee.

Assist in the investigation of significant suspected fraudulent activities within
the organization and notify management and the audit committee of the
results.

Consider the scope of work of the external auditors and regulators, as
appropriate, for the purpose of providing optimal audit coverage to the
organization at a reasonable overall cost.

On a case to case basis and as agreed with management, participate in the
systems development process and/or any special projects undertaken by the
company (systems related or otherwise). However, the auditor’'s role is
purely on a recommendatory basis. He will not be part of any decision-
making process by the project team. This is to maintain the independence of
the internal audit.

Follow through on the implementation of action plans committed by
management to mitigate identified risks and address control lapses.

Help foster a strong internal control environment through education and
training within and across Paxys and its subsidiaries.

AUTHORITY

The Chief Audit Executive and staff of the Internal Audit Department are authorized

to:

Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and

personnel,

Have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

Allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of
work, and apply the technigues required to accomplish audit objectives.
Obtain the necessary assistance of personnel in units of the organization
where they perform audits, as well as other specialized services from within
or outside the organization.

The Chief Audit Executive and staff of the Internal Audit Department are not
authorized to:

Perform any operational duties for the organization or its affiliates.

Initiate or approve accounting transactions external to the internal auditing
department.

Direct the activities of any organization employee not employed by the
internal auditing department, except to the extent such employees have
been appropriately assigned to auditing teams or to otherwise assist the
Internal Auditors.
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STANDARDS OF AUDIT PRACTICE
The Internal Audit Department will ensure compliance to the Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing of The Institute of Internal Auditors and

the Information Systems Audit & Control Association (ISACA) Standard for 1.S.
Auditing.

(Signed)

Mr. Anton Lichauco
Audit Committee Chairman

{Signed)

Mr. Tarcisio Medalla
Chairman, Paxys, Inc.
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PAXYS

Enterprise-wide Risk Management

PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES

Enterprise Risk Management is a process, effected by an eniity’'s Board of Directors,
management and other personnel, applied in strategy setting and across the enterprise that is
designed to identify potential events that may affect the entity, manage risks to be within its risk
appetite, and provide reascnable assurance regarding the achievement of entity ohjectives.

The Enterprise-wide Risk Management Program of Paxys, Inc. and Subsidiaries establishes the
standards, processes and accountability structure to identify, assess, prioritize and manage key
risk exposures across the Group. It enables the Board, Executives, Management, and employees
to understand and effectively manage a broad array of risks in an informed and strategic manner
to within an acceptahle tolerance level.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Paxys recognizes that there is always uncertainty in doing business. These uncertainties come in
the form of risk or opportunities that may present a threat to achieving the Company’s objectives
or may lead o potential growth and value if treated and managed effectively.

The effective management of the risks brought by uncertainties is the underlying raticnale for the
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program of the Company, Risks associated with the
business are identified and managed through a top down approach. In assessing their potential
effects, the identified risks are measured in terms of impact and likelihood. Action plans are then
taken to ensure that the risks are addressed accordingly.

The ERM Program shall be a sustainable process to enable Paxys to focus and manage its key
risks and embed risk management culture and awareness across all the organization, its
subsidiaries, departments and functions. This shall include the following:

s Defining a risk management strategy

s |dentifying and analyzing key risks exposure relating to economic, environmental, social
and governance factors and the achievement of the organization’s strategic objectives;
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» Evaluating and categorizing each identified risk using the company's predefined risk
categories and parameters;

» Establishing a risk register with clearly defined, prioritized and residual risks;

» Developing a risk mitigation plan for the most important risks to the company, as defined
by the risk management strategy;

« Communicating and reporting significant risk exposures including business risks (i.e.,
strategic, compliance, operational, financial and reputational risks), control issues and risk
rmitigation plan to the Board Risk Oversight Committee; and

e Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of the organization's risk management
processes.

KEY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITES

Board of Directors

The Board is ultimately responsible in ensuring that an efficient and effective Enterprise Risk
Management process is in place to effectively identify, monitor, assess and manage key business
risks to enable the group to anticipate and prepare for possible threats to its operational and
financial viability. The risk management framework guides the Board in identifying units/business
lines and enterprise-level risk exposures, as well as the effectiveness of risk management
strategies.

Audit, Risk Management and Related Party Transactions Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in ensuring that the risk management program
is in place. The Committee ensures that an enterprise-wide risk management framework has been
adopted and implemented. ldentified critical or high risks areas are presented to the Board for
information and resclution.

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
The Chief Risk Officer shall be the ultimate champion for the whole ERM program. The
responsibilities of the CRO includes the following:

s supervises the entire ERM process and spearheads the development, implementation,
maintenance and continuous improvement of ERM processes and documentation.

s Communicates the top risks and the status of implementation of risk management
strategies and action plans fo the Audit, Risk Management and RPT Committee;

» Collaborates with the CEO in updating and making recommendations fo the Board Risk
Qversight Committee
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s Suggests ERM policies and related guidance, as may be needed; and

s Provides insights on the following:
o Risk management processes are performing as intended;
o Risk measures reported are confinuously reviewed by risk owners for
effectiveness; and
o Established risk policies and procedures are being complied with.

Internal Audit

The internal audit is an independent function established to assist in the review of the Group's
internal controls, governance and risk management. The internal audit is responsible in
providing an independent and objective view of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management process and provide recommendations for continuous improvement and
management of risks.

Management and Employees

Management and the employees as a whole shall support the Group’s risk management
philosophy, promote compliance with the risk appetite and manage risks within their areas of
responsibility. Management takes ownership for managing the risks within their areas of
responsibility and is accountable for designing, implementing, monitoring and integrating ERM
into their day-to-day activities. This should be done in a manner that ensures that risk
management becemes a valuable strategic management tool.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Paxys' Enterprise Risk Management Framework is made up of six process components which
was derived from the Committee of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
ERM Framework. While no risk management system can be absolutely correct and complete,
the goal is to make critical and major business risks are managed within the Company’s
acceptable levels.

Event Identification & Risk Assessment

As part of the strategic planning process and day-to-day management of the business, functional
leaders identify internal and external events that may affect the achievement of our Company's
objectives. Risk management function personnel help identify and assess these risks through
their expertise, formal assessments and analysis of business intelligence and trends.

Risk Response

A response is determined based upon the overall risk exposure, considered as a function of
likelihcod and impact of the occurrence. Risk responses may include aveoiding or evading,
accepting, reducing, and sharing or transferring risk.
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Control Activities

Control activities are established to ensure that risk responses are carried out effectively and
consistently throughout the organization. This involves formalizing risk response in our Company
policies, ensuring clear accountability, utilizing self-assessment and monitoring tocls and
designing controls into our systems and critical business processes.

Information & Communication

Information and communication channels are in place to make the crganization aware of risks
that fall into their area of responsibility and expected behavior and actions to mitigate negative
outcomes.

Monitoring
Management reviews, as well as assurance activities, such as testing, auditing and assessments,
are in place to ensure that risks are effectively identified and assessed
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CHARTER OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors (“Board) of Paxys, Inc. {the "Corporation”) hereby adopts this Charter
of the Executive Commiittee (the “Committee”):

Section 1. Membership

1.

Composition — The Committee shall be composed of not less than three (3) but not
more than five (5) members, majority of whom shall be citizens of the Philippines, to
be appointed by the Board.

The Board shall designate from among the members of the Committee a Chairman
and a Vice Chairman.

The Board may from time to time increase the membership of the Committee, and
appoint additional members therein, who may or may not be directors.

Term — The Board shall appoint the members of the Committee at the annual
organizational meeting of the Board and each member shall serve upon his election
until the next organizational meeting of the Board unless removed or replaced by the
Board.

Vacancy — Any vacancy in the Committee caused by the death, resignation, or
disqualificatian of any member, or by any other cause, may be filled by the Board.
The member elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of the term,
or until his successor shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Section 2. Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of Committee

The Committee shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the Board of Directors
during the intervening period between the Board’s meetings. It shall act by majarity vote of all
its members on such specific matters within the competence of the Board as provided in the
By-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations, except with respect to:

1.

approval of any action for which shareholders' approval is also required;

2. filling of vacancies in the Board,;

3. amendment or repeal of By-Laws or the adoption of new By-Laws;



ANNEX 9 of PAXYS I-ACGR

4. amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which by its express terms is not
so amendable or repealable;

5. distribution of cash dividends to the shareholders; and

6. exercise of powers delegated by the Board exclusively to other committees, if any.

Section 3. Specific Powers, Duties and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the
Executive Committee

The Chairman of the Committee is the legal representative of the Corporation. He shall:

1. execute the resolutions of the stockholders’ General Meetings, of the Board, and of
the Committee;

2. sign, in accordance with said resolutions, such contracts, instruments, and powers of
attorney as may be necessary;

3. represent the Corporation and vote at the stockholders' meetings all stocks owned by
the Corporation in other corporations or companies;

4. manage the business of the Corporation, and for this purpose, he shall have the
following additional powers and duties:

(a) prepare semi-annually the budget of administration expenses;

{b) appoint and discharge the employees occupying the positions authorized by the
Board or by the Committee;

(c) supervise the accounting and cash, and sign, with the President and the
Treasurer, the Balance Sheet, profit and Loss Statement and Annual Reports;

(d) attend to the correspondence and sign receipts for incoming monies.

5. preside in all stockholders’ meeting in case of absence of the Chairman of the Board.

With the consent of the Board, the Chairman of the Committee may delegate to any of the
officers of the Corporation any and all powers granted him under this section; provided,
however, that such delegation shall not divest the Chairman of the authority to exercise the
same powers,; provided further, that any such delegaticn of powers shall be submitted for
ratification and confirmation at the next general meeting of stockholders.

With the consent of the Committee, the Chairman may also delegate powers to the
President; provided, however, that any such delegation of powers shall also be submitted for
ratification and confirmation by the stockholders.
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Section 4. Resolutions and Actions

An act of the Committee which is within the scope of its powers shall not require ratification
or approval by the Board for its validity and effectivity; provided, however, that such act shall
be subject to revision or alteration by the Board; provided, further, that no rights or acts of
third parties shall be affected by such revision or alteration.

Section 5. Meetings

The Committee shall hold meetings as often as may be deemed necessary or desirable at a
time and place determined by its Chairman.

The actions of the Committee may also be taken by written consent (in physical, electronic or
digital format) by majerity of the members when deemed necessary by the Committee or its
Chairman.

The minutes of the Committee meeting will be recorded and maintained by the Corporate
Secretary and presented to the Committee at the next Committee meeting for approval. The
Corporate Secretary or his designated representative shall act as secretary for the meetings.

Section 6. Miscellaneous

1) Access to Information — The Committee shall have reasonably free and full access
to all relevant information, data, records, properties and personnel.

2) Technical Assistance — The Corporate Secretary, management and personnel of the
Corporation shall provide technical assistance and support to the Committee.

3) Reports to the Board — The Chairman of the Committee or his designated
representative shall report to the Board of all actions of the Committee at the meeting
of the Board following such actions.

4} Confidentiality of Records — The Corporate Secretary shall keep and have custody
of the records of the Committee. Except for information that are required to be
disclosed pursuant to law or regulations issued by competent government authorities,
the records shall be kept confidential.

5) Annual Review — This Charter shall be reviewed by the Committee annually. Any
proposed changes shall be approved by the Board.

6) Effectivity — This Charter shall take effect when approved by the Board of Directors.
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PAXYS

Audit, Risk and Related Party Committee Charter

PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES

The principal responsibility of the committee is to assist the board in fulfilling its corporate
governance and fiduciary oversight responsibilities in relation to the risk management, internal
control systems, accounting policies and practices, internal and external audit functions and
financial reporting of Paxys, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The committee is also tasked to assist the board in ensuring transparency and fairness for all
stakeholders by reviewing and approving proposed related party transactions for purposes of
determining whether such transactions are within arm's length basis.

AUTHORITY

The audit committee has authority to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within
its scope of responsibility. Employees are to cooperate fully with the Audit Committee members.

» The committee is authorized to investigate any matter within the scope of its
responsibilities and make appropriate recommendations to the board.

s The committee will have unrestricted access to senior management of Paxys, Inc. and its
subsidiaries, and to company records as required.

» The committee is authorized to meet with the external and internal auditors, without any
other member of management being present, as the Committee deems appropriate.

+ The committee is authorized to obtain any independent legal or other professional advice
that it considers necessary to execute its functions.

» The committee is authorized to expend organizational resources whenever necessary to
fulfill its responsibilities,

COMPOSITION

The Audit, Risk and Related Party Transactions Committee will comprise of at least three and no
more than six members of the Board of Directors. The Board or its nominating committee will
appoint committee members and the committee chairman.

The Committee Chairman should be independent (must not be the Chairman of the Board) and
members should be financially literate. At least one member shall be a "financial expert”, as
defined by applicable legislation and regulation. At least one member should have a significant
relevant understanding of the business of the Group.
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MEETINGS

The committee will meet at least three (3) times a year, with authority to convene additional
meetings, as circumstances require. All committee members are expected to attend each
meeting, in person or via tele- or video-conference. The committee will invite members of
management, external auditors, internal auditors and/or others to attend meetings and provide
pertinent information, as necessary. It will hold private meetings with auditors and executive
sessions as necessary. Meeting agendas will be prepared and provided in advance to members,
along with executive reports. Minutes will be prepared and to be kept by the corporate secretary
and shall be accessible to all members of the board.

Recommendations of the committee are referred to the board for approval, with the exception of
the external and internal audit plans.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The scope of its responsibility entails serving as the focal point for communication between and
among the:

Board of Directors
External Auditors
Internal Auditors

Risk Management Group
Executive Management

The committee will carry out the following responsibilities:
(1) Financial Reporting Process

1. Review with the external and internal auditors, significant accounting and reporting issues,
significant adjustments recommended, including complex or unusual transactions and highly
judgmental areas, and recent professional and regulatory pronouncements, and understand
their impact on the financial statements.

2. Review with management, the external and the internal auditors, the results of the audit,
including any difficulties encountered.

3. Review with the General Counsel the status of legal matters that may have an effect on the
financial statements.

4. Review the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are complete, consistent
with information known to committee members, and reflect appropriate accounting principles.

5. Review with the head of the internal audit and the external auditor the coordination of audit
effort to assure completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective
use of audit resources.
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{2) System of Risk Management

6.

The primary purpose of the committee concerning risk management is to assist the Board
in defining the group’s risk appetite and oversee the group’s risk profile and performance
against the defined risk appetite.

Review and assess the effectiveness of the organization's risk management system,
including risks of information technology systems, and that the company is able to optimize
its opportunities through its risk management program.

Inguire of management, the head of the internal audit, the risk management head, and the
external auditor about significant risks or exposures and assess the steps management has
taken to minimize such risks to the company.

(3) System of Internal Control

9.

10.

11.

12.

Ensure that the organization has a comprehensive policy on internal control and compliance.

Consider and review with the external and internal auditors, the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control system, including information technology security and control.

Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’ review of internal control over
financial reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together
with management's responses thereto.

Review the role of the internal auditor in the corporate governance process, including
corporate governance documentation and training.

(4) Internal Audit Process

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Oversee the selection process for the Chief audit executive and review and concur in his/her
appointment, replacement, or dismissal.

Assure and maintain, through the organizational structure of the organization and by other
means, the independence of the internal audit process.

Ensure that internal auditors have access to all documents, information and systems in the
organization.

Ensure there are no unjustified restrictions or limitations placed on the Chief Audit Executive
and internal audit staff.

Review with management and the Chief Audit Executive the charter, objectives, plans,
activities, staffing, budget, qualifications and the organizational structure of the [nternal Audit
Department.
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Review significant audit findings for the year and management's responses thereto, including
the responsiveness and timeliness of management's actions pertaining to any reported
findings and recommendations.

Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function, including compliance with The Institute
of Internal Auditors' Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

On a need basis, meet separately with the Chief Audit Executive to discuss any matters that
the committee or internal audit believes should be discussed privately.

(5) External Audit of the Financial Statements

21.

22,

23.
24,

25.

26.

Review the external auditor's proposed audit scope and approach, including coordination of
audit effort with internal audit.

Recommend the appointment, retention and discharge, and review the performance, of the
external auditor.

Review and recommend the compensation of the external auditor.

Review and recommend for approval of the full board, the audited financial statements,
associated management letter, attestation on the effectiveness of the internal control
structure and procedures for financial reporting, other required auditor comrmunications, and
all other auditor reports and communications relating to the financial statements.

Review the responsiveness and timeliness of management's follow-up activities pertaining
to any reported findings and recommendations.

On a need basis, meet separately with the external auditor to discuss any matters that the
committee or auditors believe should be discussed privately.

(6) Related Party Transactions (RPTs)

27,

28.

Evaluates on an ongoing basis the existing relations between and among businesses and
counterparties to ensure that all related parties are continuously identified, RPTs are
monitored, and subseguent changes in relationships with counterparties (from non-related to
related and vice versa) are captured. Related parties, RPTs and changes in relationships
should be reflected in the relevant reports to the Board and regulators/supervisors.

Evaluates all material RPTs to ensure that these are not undertaken on mere favorable
economic terms {e.g., price, commissions, interest rates, fees, tenor, collateral requirement)
to such related parties than similar transactions with non-related parties under similar
circumstances and that no corporate or business resources of the company are
misappropriated or misapplied, and to determine any potential reputational risk issues that
may arise as a result of or in connection with the transactions. In evaluating RPTs, the
Committee takes into account, among others, the following:
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- The related party’s relationship to the company and interest in the transaction;

- The material facts of the proposed RPT, including the proposed aggregate value of
such transaction;

- The benefits to the corporation of the proposed RPT;

- The availability of other sources of comparable products or services; and

- An assessment of whether the proposed RPT is on terms and conditions that are
comparable to the terms generally available to an unrelated party under similar
circumstances, The company should have an effective price discovery systemin place
and exercise due diligence in determining a fair price for RPTs.

Ensures that appropriate disclosure is made, and/or information is provided to regulating and
supervising authorities relating to the company’s RPT exposures, and policies on conflicts of
interest or potential conflicts of interest. The disclosure should include information on the
approach to managing material conflicts of interest that are inconsistent with such policies,
and conflicts that could arise as a result of the company’s affiliation or transactions with other
related parties.

Reports to the Board of Directors on a regular basis, the status and aggregate exposures to
each related party, as well as the total amount of exposures to all related parties.

Ensures that transactions with related parties, including write-off of exposures are subject to
a periodic independent review or audit process.

Oversees the implementation of the system for identifying, monitoring, measuring, controlling,
and reporting RPTs, including a pericdic review of RPT policies and procedures,

(7) Organization’s Processes for Monitoring Compliance

33.

34.

35.

Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and reguiations
and the results of management's investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action) of
any instances of noncompliance.

Review the process for communicating to all affected parties the ethics policy, code of
conduct and fraud policy to crganization personnel, and for monitoring compliance therewith,

Obtain regular updates from management and organization legal counsel regarding
compliance matters,

(8} Special Investigations and Whistleblower Mechanism

30.

Provide an appropriate confidential mechanism for whistleblowers to provide information on
potentially fraudulent transactions and breaches of internal control, without fear of retribution
to the employee.
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(9) Committee Management and Reporting Responsibilities

37. Prepare an annual report to the board on the activities of the committee, including major
governance and control issues and significant risks.

38. Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the Board of Directors.

39. Confirm annually that all responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried out.
Prepare letter for inclusion in the annual report that describes the committee's composition
and respensibilities, and how they were discharged.
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PAXYS

Compensation and Remuneration Committee Charter

PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES

This Charter sets out the basis on which the Board has established a Compensation and
Remuneration Committee pursuant to its authority. This Charter may be amended by resclution
of the Board.

COMPOSITION

The will comprise of at least three and no more than six members of the Board of Directors. The
Board or its nominating committee will appoint committee members and the committee chairman.

The Committee Chairman should be independent (must not be the Chairman of the Board) and
members should be financially literate..

MEETINGS

The committee will meet at least once (1) a year, with authority to convene additional meetings,
as circumstances require. All committee members are expected to attend each meeting, in person
or via tele- or video-conference.

The Committee may seek the advice of the Company’s auditors, solicitors and other external
consultants or specialists as to any matter pertaining to the duties of the Committee.

A notice of each meeting shall be forwarded to members of the Committee at least five working
days prior to the date of the meeting. The notice will include relevant supporting papers for the
agenda items to be reviewed and discussed.

All minutes of the Committee will be entered into a minute book maintained for that purpose and
will be open at all times for inspection by any director, provided no conflict of interest exists.

A guorum will comprise any two committee members. In the absence of the Committee Chairman
or appointed delegate, the members shall elect one of their number as Chairman for that meeting.
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RESPONSIBILITIES

Without limiting its role, specific duties and responsibilities of the Committee include the following:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

- to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

- to review and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or appeintment to
ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensaticn is otherwise fair and not excessive for the Company;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- o ensure that no director or any of his or her associates is involved in deciding his or her
own remuneration;

- to consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their remuneration
proposals for other executive directors. The Committee should have access to
independent professional advice if necessary;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities
and employment conditions in the Group (which comprises the Company and its

subsidiaries); and

- to consider other topics as defined by the Board.

REPORTING

The Committee shall provide a report of the actions of the Committee at the next Board meeting.

The Committee Chairman will also, if requested, provide a brief verbal report to the Board as to
any material matters arising out of the Committee meeting.
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REVIEW

The Board will review the membership and terms of reference of the Committee annually.
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PAXYS

NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

COMPOSITION

The Nomination and Governance Committee (the "Committee™) of the Board of Directors (the
“Beard”) of the Company shall consist of at least 3 and not more than 6 Directors, with at least
one Independent Director. Members of the Committee shall be appointed and may be removed
by the Board.

PURPOQSE

The purpose of the Committee shall be to assist the Board in identifying qualified individuals to
become member of the Board, in determining the composition of the Board and its committees,
in monitoring and assessing the Board's effectiveness, and in developing and implementing the
Company's corporate governance principles and guidelines.

AUTHORITY and RESPONSIBILITIES

In furtherance of its purpose, the Committee shall have the following authority and
responsibilities:

1. To pre-screen and shortlist candidates nominated to become a member of the Board in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications for Directors set forth in existing
laws, relevant regulations and the Corporate Governance Manual;

2. To censider and recommend to the Board the permanent or temporary disqualification or
such other appropriate administrative sanction of any Director based on the grounds
provided under the Corporate Governance Manual and the Committee Charter.

3. To determine and submit an appropriate recommendation or finding on whether a
candidate's directorship in other corporations would affect his capacity to serve and
perform his duties as a Director diligently, taking into consideration the following factors:
(a) the nature of the Company's business; (b) the number of directorships/active
memberships and officerships of a Director in other corporations or organizations; (c) any
possible conflict of interest; and (d) such other facters which the Board may consider from
time to time.

4. To ensure that the Executive Directors, the Independent Directors and Non-Executive
Directors who serve as full-time executives in other corporations shall submit themselves
to a low-indicative limit on directorships in other corporations in order that the capacity of
said Directors to serve the Company with utmost diligence shall not be compromised.
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To ensure that the Company shall conform with the requirement to have an Independent
Director or such number of Independent Directors as maybe required by law and its
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws;

In connection with the qualification and election of Independent Directors for purposes of
the stockholder's meeting, to conduct the nomination process for the election of
Independent Directors under the procedures/guidelines provided under the Committee's
Charter.

After the nomination, to prepare a final list of all candidates which shall contain all the
information about all the nominees for Independent Directors, which list, shall be made
available to the Securities and Exchange Commission and to all stockholders through the
filing and distribution of the Information Statement or Proxy Statement. The name of the
person or group of persons who recommended the nomination of the Independent Director
shall be identified in such report including any relationship with the nominee. Only
norinees whose names appear on the final List of Candidates shall be eligible as
Independent Directors. No other nomination shall be entertained after the final List of
Candidates shall have been prepared. No further nomination shall be entertained or
allowed on the floor during the actual stockholders' meeting.

To identify and recommend the candidates among the incumbent Directors to fill
vacancies in any of the Board Committees, taking into consideration the factors set out in
the respective Charters of said Committees as well as any other factors it deems
appropriate.

To identify candidates for any vacancies in the Board.
To conduct an annual board evaluation process to assess the effectiveness of the Board.

To develop and recommend to the Board for its approval a set of corporate governance
principles, standards and guidelines and taking a leadership role in shaping the corporate
governance of the Company. The Committee shall review the guidelines at least annually,
and recommend changes as necessary.

To develop and recommend to the Board for its approval an annual self-evaluation
process of the Board and its committees. The Committee shall oversee the annual self-
evaluations.

Assist the Board by ensuring that appropriate senior leadership succession planning is in
place throughout the group and recommending to the Board appropriate potential and
actual successors to the chief executive officer and other key senior leadership roles.

Monitor the Group's fiduciary and regulatory responsibilities with respect to external
reporting; i.e., corporate plan, annual report, and other similar reports.

The Committee shall have the authority to delegate any of its responsibilities to subcommitiees
as the Committee may deem appropriate in its sole discretion.

The Committee shall have the authority to retain a search firm engaged to assist in identifying
candidates for director, and to retain outside counsel and any other advisors as the Committee

Page 20of 3
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may deem appropriate in its sole discretion. The Committee shall have sole authority to
approve related fees and retention terms.

REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee shall report its actions and recommendations to the Board after each committee
meeting and shall conduct and present to the Board an annual performance evaluation of the
Committee. The Committee shall review at least annually the adequacy of this Charter and
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Page 3 of 3
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) EVALUATION

Name of CEO

Date of Evaluation

Evaluated hy

This CEQ Assessment Questionnaire is composed of varying statements based on the roles,
functions and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. For each statement, you
will be asked to choose among the following responses:

1- Disagree
2- Neutrai
3- Agree

Put a check (X) mark on your rating. Please be forthright in your answers. This Questionnaire aims to
determine the CEO's strengths and weaknesses. Thank you.

FERSONAL QUALITIES

The CEO is a person of integrity.

The CEO has the respect of his peers within the business community.
The CEO sets high personal standards and pursues goals with a high
level of persanal drive and energy.

LEADERSHIP SKILLS

1. The CEOQ clearly defines the vision and mission of the organization.

2. Strategic Thinking. The CEO:

(a) demonstrates a broad-based view of issues, events, and activities, in
order to develop organizational strategies;

(b) perceives longer-term impact and wider implications of issues and
events and considers wide-ranging possibilities;

(c) creates strategies to balance short-term requirements with long-range
business plans consistent with the vision and mission.

3. Business Leadership. The CEOQ:;

(a) Meets profit objectives through a keen sense of business and
technical competence;

(b} Seizes opportunities to increase current business or to expand into
new markets, products, or services.

4, Planning, Prioritizing and Maintaining Focus. The CEC:

(a) establishes short-term and long term goals and business plans;

(b) clarifies roles and responsibilities, sets priorities and milestones and
is not distracted by unimportant details or activities.

5. Analytical Thinking and Decision Making. The CEO:

(a) analyses issues and breaks them down into their component parts;
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b) examines issues from different perspectives.

{c) makes systematic and rational judgments and decisions based on
consideration of all the relevant information.

6. Innovation. The CEO:
(a) identifies fresh approaches and shows a willingness to question
traditional assumptions;

b) creates new and imaginative approaches to work-related issues,

7. Corperate Social Responsibility.
The CEO actively promotes the Company's CSR programs and
activities in close coordination with the Aboitiz Foundation.

MANAGERIAL SKILLS: Building Commitment

1. Catalyzing Teams.
The CEO effectively catalyses in building and rmaintaining teams’
achievement of business goals.

2. People Development.
The CEQ plans and supports the develepment of individual's skills
and abilities so that they can fulfil current or future job/role
responsibilities more effectively.

3. Communication.
The CEO Clearly conveys information and ideas through a variety of
media to individuals or groups in a manner that engages the audience
and helps them understand and retain the message.

4. Building Partnerships and Networking.
The CEO actively identifies opportunities and takes action in building
strategic relationships between cne’'s area and other areas, teams,
departments, units or organizations to help achieve business goals.

5. Motivating Others. The CEO
{a) empowers and motivates team members, and at the same time
generates enthusiasm and commitment from others;

(b) executes clear policies established for how the Company and its
employees will operate.

MANAGERIAL SKILLS: Ensuring Execution

1. Leading Change.
The CEO continuously uses change management skills and abilities
to seek opportunities for different and innovative approaches to
addressing organizational problems and opportunities.

2. Customer Focus.
The CEQO proactively develops customer relaticnships by making
efforts to listen to and understand the customer.

3. Managing Performance.
The CEOQO Focuses and guides others in accomplishing work and
business objectives.

4. Resilience,
The CEQ maintains effective work behavior in the face of setbacks or
pressure. He remains calm, stable and in control, regardless of
pressure.

BOARD RELATIONS

1. The CEO works with the Board in developing the mission and long-
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and short-range strategic plans.

2. The CEO works with the Board to create an optimal governance
environment.

3. The CEO appraises the Board regularly on Company plans,
performance, issues and opportunities at and between meetings.

4. The CEOQO helps educate the Board on the organization.

5. The CEO executes the philosophy and direction provided by the
Board of Directors.

6. The CEOQ creates a sense of trustworthiness in Board/CEQ relations.

F'iNANCIAL MANAGEMENT

1. The CEO has a solid, up-to-date understanding of the Company’s
financial statements and other measures relevant to its business and
financial situation.

2. The CEO is supported by a qualified and competent CFO who has
day-to-day accountability for managing and monitoring the
Company's finances.

3. The CEO understands the concept of value creation and makes
decisions on where to allocate resources based on maximizing value
to the organization.

4, The CEO ensures that the organization’s financial records are
accurate and up-to-date.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

| am satisfied with the overall performance of the CEQ.

QUESTIONS:
In your opinion, what are the major accomplishments of the CEO over the past year and what
trait/skills did he exhibit in making them happen? (List 2 or 3)

Major Accomplishment Trait/Skills Exhibited

What area/s, if any, could the CEOQ improve on his personal performance?

What assistance or resources are needed to address his developmental needs?
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Please share other comments you may have regarding the CEO.

Thank you for spending time accomplishing this evaluation form.



PAXYS ANNEX 14 of PAXYS I-ACGR

Assessment Form
(Audit, Risk and Related Party Transactions Committee)

This Self-Assessment Questionnaire is composed of varying statements based on the roles, functions
and responsibilities of the Committee found under Committee Charter. For each statement, you will be
asked to choose from among the following responses:

1- Disagree
2- Neutral
3- Agree

Please be forthright in your responses. This questionnaire aims to determine the Board's strengths and
weaknesses. Thank you.

| PERFORMANCE OF THE COMMI

l. Fun'ciions of the Com.mit.téé

1 The Committee accordingly exercises the powers and perform the
duties of the Board of Directors during the intervening period between
the Board's meetings.

2 The Chairman of the Committee accordingly performed his duties and
functions as the legal representative of the Corporation
3 With the consent of the Committee, the Chairman is allowed to

delegate powers to the President and such delegation of powers is
submitted for ratification and confirmation by the stockhoelders.

4 The Committee acts by majority vote of all its members on such specific
matters within the competence of the Board as provided in the By-laws
and applicable laws, rules and regulations, except for those matters
enumerated in the Charter that can only be performed by the Board,

5 The committee has the authority and resources to conduct and perform
the roles and responsibilities as identified in the Committee Charter
which includes overseeing and monitoring of the overall financial
reporting process, risk management, internal controls, internaliexternal
audifs, compliances fo laws and regulations, related party transactions,
including the mechanisms for special investigations and whistleblowing
systems.

1. The Committee and the Board

1 The Committee works in close cooperation with the Board to effectively
communicate its proposals.

With the consent of the Beard, the Chairman of the Committee is allowed
fo delegate to any of the officers of the Corpeoration any and all powers
granted him under the Charter and such delegation did not divest the
Chairman of the authority to exercise the same powers, which is also
submitted for ratification and confirmation at the next general meeting of
stockholders.
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The Chairman of the Committee or his designated representative
reports to the Board all actions of the Committee at the meeting of the
Board following such actions.

The act of the Committee which is within the scope of its powers, no
longer required the ratification or approval by the Board for its validity and
effectivity, subject only to revision or alteration by the Board when
necessary.

When revisions and alternations by the Board on the act of the
Committee is made, the Committee ensures that these revisions and
alterations same do not affect the rights or acts of third parties.

Committee Meetings and Facilities

The Committee holds meetings as often as may be deemed necessary
or desirable.

2 The Chairman facilitates the conduct of the meseting.

3 The Agenda for the Committee meetings are relevant and appropriate

4 The length of the Committee meeting is sufficient to address matters that
require Board attention.

5 The venue for the Board meeting is sufficient for the size and needs of
the Board and well equipped with video and teleconferencing facilities.

6 The minutes of the Committee meeting will be recorded and maintained

by the Corporate Secretary and presented to the Committee at the next
Committee meeting for approval.

IV. Committee Composition
1 The size of the Committee is appropriate for the considering the size and
needs of the Company.
2 The number of independent Directors is sufficient.
3 There is a system of ensuring continuity of the functions of the
Committee.
4 The members of the committees are properly assigned based on their

expertise and strengths.

Cverall, | am very satisfied with the effectiveness and performance of the
Audit, Risk Management and RPT Committee.

Others

For the next five (5) years, the Committee should concentrate on the following
issues?




ANNEX 14 of PAXYS |-ACGR

The performance of the Committee can be improved by instituting the following
measures:

Comments




PAXYS ANNEX 15 of PAXYS [-ACGR

Assessment Form (Executive Committee)

This Self-Assessment Questionnaire is composed of varying statements based on the roles, functions
and responsibilities of the Executive Committee found under Executive Committee Charter. For each
statement, you will be asked to choose from among the following responses:

1- Disagree
2- Neutral
3- Agree

Please be forthright in your responses. This questionnaire aims to determine the Board's strengths and
weaknesses. Thank you.

| PERFORMANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

l. Functions of the Committee

1 The Committee accordingly exercises the powers and perform the
duties of the Board of Directors during the intervening period between
the Board's meetings.

2 The Chairman of the Committee accordingly performed his duties and
functions as the legal representative of the Corporation
3 With the consent of the Committee, the Chairman is allowed to

delegate powers to the President and such delegation of powers is
submitted for ratification and confirmation by the stockholders.

4 The Committee acts by majority vote of all its members on such specific
matters within the competence of the Board as provided in the By-laws
and applicable laws, rules and regulations, except for those matters
enumerated in the Charter that can only be performed by the Board.

1. The Committee and the Board

1 The Committee works in close cooperation with the Board to effectively
communicate its proposals.

With the consent of the Board, the Chairman of the Committee is allowed
to delegate to any of the officers of the Corporation any and all powers
granted him under the Charter and such delegation did not divest the
Chairman of the authority to exercise the same powers, which is also
submitted for ratification and confirmation at the next general meeting of
stockholders.

2 The Chairman of the Committee or his designated representative
reports to the Board all actions of the Committee at the meeting of the
Board following such actions.

3 The act of the Committee which is within the scope of its powers, no
longer required the ratification or approval by the Board for its validity and
effectivity, subject only to revision or alteration by the Board when
necessary.
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When revisions and alternations by the Board on the act of the
Committee is made, the Committee ensures that these revisions and
alterations same de not affect the rights or acts of third parties.

Committee Meetings and Facilities

The Commitiee holds meetings as often as may be deemed necessary
or desirable.

The Chairman facilitates the conduct of the meeting.

The Agenda for the Commitiee meetings are relevant and appropriate

DN

The length of the Committee meeting is sufficient to address matters that
require Board attention.

The venue for the Board meeting is sufficient for the size and needs of
the Board and well equipped with video and teleconferencing facilities.

The minutes of the Committee meeting will be recorded and maintained
by the Corporate Secretary and presented to the Committee at the next
Committee meeting for approval.

Committee Composition

The size of the Committee is appropriate for the considering the size and
needs of the Company.

The number of Independent Directors is sufficient.

Wbk

There is a system of ensuring continuity of the functions of the Executive
Committee.

The members of the committees are properly assigned based on their
expertise and strengths.

Overall, | am very satisfied with the effectiveness and performance of the
Executive Committee.

Others

For the next five (5) years, the Executive Committee should concentrate on the
following issues?

The performance of the Executive Committee can be improved by instituting the
following measures:
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Comments
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PAXYS

Internal Control and Compliance

This report summarizes the state of Paxys' Internal Audit, Control and
Compliance systems for the year 2017.

Internal control Systems

Basic control mechanisms such as organizational, structural and financial
controls are existent. The company’s control structure consists of the Board
having oversight responsibility over the internal control systems with this
oversight function being exercised through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee. Management is accountable to the Board for developing, operating
and monitoring the system of internal control. Internal control improvements are
being identified at the management level and through both the internal and
external audits. Depending on the required intervention, these improvements are
either immediately carried out, or made into projects if the implementation will
take longer time, or in major issues, may be elevated to the Board for decision.

Below are the implemented controls and areas for improvement/weaknesses
based on the components of Internal Control.

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT
COMPONENTS
Control Environment There is an established "tone at the top™
including explicit moral guidance about what
Pertains to the overall culture of is right and wrong within the crganization.

internal controls at the organization,
including governance and compliance. | Management demonstrates a commitment to
integrity and ethical behavior by example in
its day-to-day activities.

Company policies regarding acceptable
business practices, conflicts of interest, and
expected ethical standards of ethical and
moral behavior are established and
communicated across the organization.

Risk Assessment Management has an effective processes in
place to identify, measure and monitor key
An activity whereby all of the activities, | business risks.

and associated risks, in an
organization are identified and | Formal Enterprise Risk  Management
analyzed. The business risks are | Program is in place and a risk register has




ANNEX 16 of PAXYS |-ACGR

assessed as to its likelihood of
occurrence and the probable impact to
the Company. Risk treatment or
action plans are devised to ensure that
major and critical risks are managed or
treated to ensure achievement of
business objectives.

been devised to document all associated
risks.

The risk management process is embedded
in the culture and day-to-day activities from
Board, Executive management and down to
the employee level,

Control Activities

This include procedures and controls
put into place to mitigate identified
risks. This include establishment of
policies and procedures across the
organization.

Policies and procedures are in place for all
critical business processes,

Based on the risk assessment done, high
and critical risks are treated depending on
the risk appetite of the Group. Responsibility
for risk is shared across the organization
through functional risk owners.

The Board is updated on the results of the
risk assessment activities and continuous
audits are done to ensure monitoring of high
risk areas.

Communication and Information

Right information are provided to the
right people at the right time for them
to effectively carry out their activities.
Useful information has relevant
content and is timely, current,
accurate, and accessible,

There are  effective communication
processes for the use, distribution and
sharing of information throughout the

organization.

Monitoring

This validates that controls are working
as intended and identifies anomalies.
Monitoring is done at various
organizational levels to include: check
points by personnel performing daily
tasks; reviews of fransactions or
events by supervisors; spot checks by
objective individuals; and various
reviews by peers, management
advisory services, consultants, and
auditors.

Continuous monitoring is embedded in the
culture through internal controls designed by
Management to detect errors and anomalies,

Internal Audit is in charge for the review of
the effectiveness of the design and
soundness of the company's internal
controls,
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Internal Audit

The Internal Audit activity supports the Board and management’s assessment of
the soundness of internal control and compliance systems by doing an
independent, objective review. The Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit,
Risk and Related Party Transactions Committee and administratively to the
Chairman and President, thus providing full independence to the internal audit
activity.

Internal Audit conducts an annual risk assessment to determine its scope of
review which is approved by Committee. The Internal Audit meets quarterly to
discuss audit results and other control and compliance matters. A copy of the
minutes of the committee meetings is provided to the board.

Compliance Systems

The Compliance Officer is responsible in developing, overseeing and monitoring
implementation of compliance program. He ensures the company's adherence to
regulatory and fiduciary requirements. The compliance officer is tasked to
regularly provide compliance reports to the Audit Risk and Related Party
Transactions Commitiee. Internal Audit likewise conducts an annual review of
the Company’s compliance systems and processes.

Tarcisio M. Medalla
Chairman & President

Sheri A. Inocencio
Chief Audit Executive
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING
OF THE STOCKHOLDERS

OF
PAXYS, INC.

Held at the Manila Golf and Country Club
Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City
on December 6, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

The Chairman, Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla, called the meeting to order and
presided over the same, He introduced the members of the Board of Directors
who were present, namely, Roger Leo A. Carifio, Christopher B. Maldia, Roberto
A. Atendido, and Independent Directors George Y. SyCip and Jose Antonio A.
Lichauco. The Corporate Secretary, Atty. Ana Maria Katigbak, recorded the

proceedings.

PROOF OF NOTICE AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

The Corporate Secretary reported that notices for the meeting had been

sent to all the stockholders as provided in the By-Laws.

The Corporate Secretary announced that there were present, in person
and by proxy, stockholders owning or representing at least 976,980,609 common
shares or 85.06% of the outstanding capital stock. (The list of attendees and
proxies is available at the office of the Corporation). She therefore certified that

there was a quorum for the transaction of business.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The next item for business was the approval of the minutes of the
previous meeting of the stockholders held on December 6, 2016, copies of which

had been earlier distributed to the stockholders.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, and there being no objections, the

reading of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders’ meeting was
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dispensed with and the same were unanimously approved. The following

resolution was therefore approved:

“RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting of
Paxys, Inc. held on December 6, 2016 be, as it is hereby, approved.”

ANNUAL REPORT

The next matter on the agenda was the Annual Report of Management to
the stockholders. The Chairman, Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla, presented the
management report, copies of which had been previously distributed to the
stockholders together with the audited financial statements as of calendar year
ended December 31, 2016 and third quarter report for the period ended
September 30, 2017.

After the report, the Chairman announced that questions on the reports
would be entertained from the floor. None of the stockholders, however, raised

any inquiry.,

There being no further questions or comments, the Chairman requested
for a motion on the Management Report. Whereupon, on motion made and duly
seconded, the Annual Report of Management as presented by the Chairman, as
well as the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2016 and third
quarter report for the period ended September 30, 2017 were duly noted and
made part of the records of the Corporation. Thus, the below approved

resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the Management Report as presented by the President
and the Corporation’s audited financial statements for year ended Decenber
31, 2016 be, as it is hereby, approved.”

Thereafter, the Corporate Secretary was requested to preside over the

remainder of the meeting.

RATIFICATION OF CORPORATE ACTS

The Corporate Secretary stated that the next item on the agenda was the

ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors, officers and management of the
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Corporation from the last annual stockholders’ meeting to date. There being no

questions or objections, a motion was requested on the matter.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the stockholders approved a
resolution approving, confirming and ratifying all acts, contracts, resolutions and
actions, authorized and entered into by the Board of Directors and Management
of the Corporation from the date of the last annual stockholders” meeting up to
the present, as set forth in the Annual Report and the financial statements. Thus,

the below approved resolution:

“RESOLVED, that all acts, contracts, resolutions and actions of the
Bonard of Directors and Management of the Corporation from the date of the
last annual stockholder’s meeting up to the present be, as they are hereby,
approved, ratified and confirmed.”

AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The next item of our agenda was the amendment of the Articles of
Incorporation. Previously, the Sixth Article of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation provides for a total of nine {9) directors. It was proposed to
decrease the number of directors to seven (7). The Corporate Secretary discussed
that the purpose of the amendment is to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness
of the management of the Company and the rights of the shareholders in electing
the members of the Board of Directors. The proposed amendment was approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors and was, thus, endorsed to the

stockholders for its approval, confirmation and ratification.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the stockholders approved the

amendment with the following resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the first paragraph of the SIXTH Article of the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation be amended to read as follows:

"That the number of directors of the Corporation shall be
seven (7) who will continue discharging their duties until
the election of their successors in accordance with the By-
Laws of the Corporation x x x’

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Directors and Officers of the
Corporation be authorized to sign, execute and file with the Securities and
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Exchange Commission such documents and papers which may be required
to give effect to the foregoing.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The next matter on the agenda was the election of the members of the

Board of Directors of the Corporation.

The Corporate Secretary explained that in accordance with the Company’s
Corporate Governance Manual, all nominations for director were reviewed and
approved by the Nominations and Corporate Governance Committee. Under
SEC rules, only nominees whose names have been submitted to and evaluated
by the Nominations and Corporate Governance Committee, and whose names
appear in the Final List of Candidates set forth in the Definitive Information

Statement, shall be eligible for election as Independent Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for
the current term and until their successors are duly elected and qualified in

accordance with the By-Laws:

TARCISIO M. MEDALLA
ROGER LEO A. CARINO
CHRISTOPHER B. MALDIA
LIM GHEE KEONG
ROBERTO A. ATENDIDO

I R

and as Independent Directors:

6. GEORGE Y. 5YCIP
7. JOSE ANTONIO A. LICHAUCO

Thereafter, it was moved, seconded and unanimously resolved to close
the nominations. The Corporate Secretary was directed and authorized to cast all
votes of the stockholders present or represented at the meeting equally among all
the seven (7) nominees. There being only seven (7) nominees to the positions of
the existing seven (7) directors, the Chairman declared them to be the duly
elected directors of the Corporation for the current term and until their
successors shall have been elected and qualified as provided in the By-Laws.
Messrs. SyCip and Lichauco were duly recognized as the Corporation’s

independent directors.
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APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Thereafter, the meeting proceeded with the appointment of the external
auditors of the Corporation for the current year. It was proposed that the
accounting firm Reyes Tacandong & Co. be reappointed external auditors of the
Company for the current year. There being no questions or objections on the

matter, a motion was requested.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the stockholders approved a
resolution authorizing the reappointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co. as the

Company’s external auditors for the current year, as follows:

“"RESOLVED, that the accounting firm of Reyes, Tacandong & Co. be re-
appointed external auditors of the Company for the current year.”

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to transact on motion duly made and

seconded, the meeting was adjourned.

ATTY. ANA MARIJA KATIGBAK
Corporate Secretary

ATTESTED:

TARCISIO M. MEDALLA
Chairman of the Stockholders” Meeting
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Procedure

Process Adopted

Criteria

a. Selection/Appointment

(i} Executive Directors

There are only 2 executive directors and they are the President who
is af the same lime the chairman of the Board, and the Corporate
Secretary who is at the same time Corporale Counsel.

{ii} Non-Executive Directors

(iiiy Independent Directors

1. Stockholders to submit nominees to the Nominations and
Governance Committee (NGC) no more than 30 days before the
date of the stockholder's meeling.

2. The nominating form shall contain the name of the nominee and
all information that may be required by the SEC. the nominating
form should be signed by the nominating stockholder and have
the signed conformily of the nominee.

3. NGC fto screen qualifications of the nominee

4. Only shortlisted nominees shall be eligible for election, no further
nominee shall be accepted on the floor.

5. Conduct of election of non-execulive director shall be in
accordance fo the election procedures of the company, which
happens during the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The chairman will inform all stockholders present during the (AGM)

of the mandatory requirement fo elect independent directors.

General criteria:

- College education or equivalent academic degree,

- Practical understanding of the business of the
Corporation,

- Membership in good standing in relevant industry,
business or professional organizations;

- Previous business exposure

On top of the general criteria, specific criteria is set as

follows:

- With financial expertise/background

- Should be free of any conflict of interest that would
violate the applicable law on independent directors

Have the capacily and interest to represent the interests

of the shareholders as a whole

b. Re-appointment

(i) Executive Directors

Executive directors are covered by employment contract.

As evalualed by the Board based on set KPIs.

(i) Non-Executive Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

1. Nomination and Governance Commitfee assesses the
performance of the director vis a vis the needs of the
business/company and his role as defined in the Manual.

2. If director is fit for the job, he stands for re-election during the
Annual General Meeling.

3. The process for election will then be adopted.

Able to meet the roles and responsibilities of the job as
set forth in the corporate governance manual and the
corporation’s by-laws

The same
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Summary of Roles and Responsibilities of Chairman and President

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer/President

Role

Responsible for the leadership of the Board

Leadership of the business and managing it within the
authorities delegated by the Board,

Accountabilities

1. Ensure effective Board functioning in accordance with its standards
of corporate governance

2. Ensure effective communication with shareholders, government and
other stakeholders

3. Ensure that all Board committees are properly established,
composed and operated

4, Chair the Neminations Committee and build an effective and
complementary Board, regularly consider its composition and
balance, including succession planning for Board and senior
management appointments

Facilitates the effective contribution of non-executive directers in
particular and ensure constructive relations between executive and
non-executive directors.

1. Develop strategy for board recommendation

2. Execute business plan and update the Board on the
business performance

3. Develop procedures to ensure compliance to regulatory
requirements

Ensure business is conducted in accordance with the

company’s business ethics
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PAXYS

Summary of Reports Filed to the SEC and PSE

REPORTS DATE FILED

SEC | PSE 45 days 90 days Due date
Quarterly Report
1st 15-May-17 15-May-17 Complied within 45 days 15-May-17
2nd 11-Aug-17 12-Aug-17 Complied within 45 days 14-Aug-17
3rd 08-Nov-17 07-Nov-17 Complied within 45 days 14-Nov-17
Annual Report 12-Apr-18 12-Apr-18
Annual Financial Statements 12-Apr-18 Filed within 105 days from

end of fiscal year
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Summary of Policies on Fair Treat and Equal Protection of Shareholders

Policy

Activities

Customers' welfare

Employees could avoid unfair advantage of
anyane through manipulation, concealment,
abuse of authority, misrepresentation and/or any
unfair dealing. All employees must deal fairly
with the company's customers,

Tracking of SLA's and KPls

Supplier/contractor selection practice

Suppliers should undergo accreditation;
procurement policy: vendor policy

Supplier accreditation; Implementation of the
procurement policy

Environmentally friendly value-chain

None

None

Community interaction

Company will actively participate in community
development and will support environment
protection.

Scholarships for selected students in High
School and Coliege levels

Anti-corruption programmes and procedures

Company prohibits all forms of bribery and
corruption. Gifts and other means of showing
appreciation and gratitude maybe exchanged
with business partners given that it will never
influence business decisions. Acceptance and
giving of any gift must be avoided if it may be
perceived as unfair or may influence a business
relationship or any business decision.

Company has zero tolerance for fraud and will
cooperate as necessary with law enforcement
agencies. Company assets may be used only
for legitimate business purposes.

We do not engage in solicitation programs with
our suppliers and vendors

Strict compliance and monitoring of regulatory
requirements

Implementing appropriate operational and
financial controls

Safeguarding creditors' rights

None

None




